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1. Name .

historic

and-or common St. Helens Downtown Historic District

2' Locatlon fe'v’“&q,ﬁ,ﬁt; J'f’raw{ll'/ryﬁéhi’\ .{rd,l-f'."k,Cow? i 2, sk Helons sis 4

A ten-block a%ea,€1rregu1af’in shape,” bounded essentially by River Street an
e

3 2

on the east, South Fifth Street on

d

c,u(M_b;G

city, town St. Helens N/A vicinity of First Congressional District A1,
state Oregon code 41 county Columbia code 009
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
_X_ district ____public X occupied —___agriculture _X___ museum
___ building(s) ___ private ____ unoccupied _X_commercial X_ park
____structure  _X_both ____work in progress __X_ educational X__ private residence
—site Nyxlic Acquisition Accessible X~ entertainment — religious
—__object 2/ Min process - —___yes: restricted —X- government ___ scientific

N/A being considered X yes: unrestricted —_ industrial ___transportation

- —_nho ’ — military ___other:

4. Owner of Property
name Multiple ownership, see Inventory, Item 7
street & number N/A
city, town N/A N/A vicinity of state N/A

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc.

‘Columbia County Courthouse, Clerk's Office

street & number 122 Strand Street

St. Helens

city, town

state Oregon 97051

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

Statewide Inventory of Historic Properties

X

title has this property been determined eligible? ___ _yes % no

date 1984

_ federal ___X state _ county ____ local

depository for survey records

State Historic Preservation Office, 525 Trade Street SE

city, town salem

state

Oregon 97310




7. Description

Condition ' Check one Check one
____excellent ___ deteriorated ___ unaltered _X__ original site N/A
—__good . ruins _X__ altered —__ moved date
_X_fair ___ unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance
The St. Helens Downtown Historic District is a mixed-use area of 47.5 acres which includes
public, commercial and residential buildings. It encompasses 145 separately owned parcels,
though some parcels contain more than one structure, thus making an approximate total of 149
separately evaluated properties. Within the district are 17 significant properties dating
from the earliest period of development, 84 significant properties dating from the years of
upbuilding following the disastrous fire of 1904, 16 properties which are chronologically his-
toric but which do not contribute in present cond1t1on, 9 compatible but non-historic buildings,
3 non-contributing buildings, and 20 vacant parcels. A detailed definition of the classifica-
tions system is given on the next page. The district has a varied topography due to the fact
that a series of basalt ridges and rocky outcroppings runsthrough the area in a north/south
direction. Nevertheless, because there are proportionately few non-contributing properties in
the historic downtown, the district is cohesive, especially in its array of buildings dating
from the period 1906-1934.

The district boundaries are determined by distinct changes in topography, land use and archi-
tectural period and character. The eastern edge of the district is defined by the Columbia
River along Strand and to the northeast by a c1liff along the west side of River Street. The
northernmost edge of the district is defined by an abrupt topographical change in the form of
a gulch lined with evergreen trees. The western boundary of the district, along 4th Street,
between St. Helens Street and Columbia Boulevard, is delineated by a thick grove of Douglas
fir trees on a bluff behind the residences. Most of the properties on 3rd and 4th Streets,
south of St. Helens Street, were excluded from district boundaries because they represent a
shift in architectural character. The southernmost boundary of the district is formed by a
large ridge having steep grades, a topographic line of demarcation which is reinforced by a
change in architectural character of resources south of the boundary.

The irregular topography of St. Helens does not lend itself to the regular gridiron plat of
the city which was completed in 1850 for Henry Knighton by W. H. Tappan, a U.S. Army-employed
"special artist,"and P. W. Crawford. "The streets were laid out in a simple grid, but distrib-
uted within the grid were five large public squares. The pattern of squares is similar to the
Philadelphia plat, though St. Helens lacks the broad main streets running through the central
square, which is an important characteristic of the Philadelphia plan." (Steven Dotterrer,
"Cities and Towns," Space, Style and Structure: Building in Northwest America, Thomas Vauaghan
and Virginia Ferriday, eds., Oregon Historical Society, 1974, Volume 2, pages 648-649.)

The plat was clearly drawn with 1ittle consideration of the topography of the area. The numer-
ous basalt ridges that run through the area in a north/south direction and the rocky outcroppings
cause the lots to be irregular and streets to be impassable. Many of the residences are con-
structed with watertables high above the rocky grade. Abigail Scott Duniway, a nationally-known
figure because of her work in the Women's Suffrage Movement, advanced a new and original theory
with regard to geological origins of St. Helens. In a speech delivered in St. Helens during

the historic period, she was confronted "by an audience of three men only, all rusty old bach-
elors who listened with apparent derision..." She was "infuriated and exclaimed in a voice of
vituperation: 'But what more could you expect of St. Helens! It is the last place created by
God on this earth and it angered him and he heaved rocks at it!'" (Susie Dillard, "City of

St. Helens Founded in 1845," St. Helens Sentinel-Mist, Columbia County Progress Report, 1939 to
1949, page 22.

(Continued)
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Asphalt, concrete, and gravel streets, concrete sidewalks, and pole mounted street lights
comprise public improvements. The commercial core of the District is along lst Street
with public buildings farther to the east, along Strand. The commercial buildings en-
front the street with concrete sidewalks located between the buildings and the curb. A
county park, ''"The Plaza', lies between Strand and lst Street facing the courthouse. It
is planted with grass and maple trees and was developed in 1907, by Fred A, Erixon of
Albany, Oregon, the contractor for the County Courthouse. Other street trees planted

in the District include species of maple, walnut and oak. Cedar trees and Douglasfir
are prominent on the bluffs and in the gullies.

In the residential section of the District, the building setback is relatively small and
in most areas concrete sidewalks line the streets as well. The steep, irregular topo-
graphy of the District creates a need for the concrete, brick and rock walls and steps,
especially visible along 1st and 2nd Streets. Some streets have been left unimproved

or are dead ended due to the steep basalt bluffs within the District; 2nd Street,
between St. Helens and Cowlitz Streets, is an example of such a street.

The classification system for structures within the boundaries of the District is based
on building date, architectural style, condition, alterations, and building-setback and
context. Properties within the boundaries of the proposed Historic District are classi-
fied into six categories: 1) Primary Significant, 2) Secondary Significant, 3) Historic
Non-Contributing, 4) Compatible Non-Contributing, 5) Non-Compatible Non-Contributing,
and 6) Vacant.

1) Primary Significant: Structures are classified as Primary Significant if they
were built before the fire of September 1904 or reflect the building styles,
traditions, or patterns of structures typically constructed before 1905. These
buildings represent the primary period of construction and development in St.
Helens, from Henry Knighton's initial settlement in 1847 to the fire of September
14, 1904 when much of the old downtown was destroyed.

2) Secondary Significant:. Structures are classified as Secondary Significant if they
were built between 1905 and 1933. These buildings represent the secondary period
of construction and development, from the McCormick Bros. development of a lumber
mill and of other industries to the Depression.*

3) Historic Non-Contributing: Structures are classified as Historic Non-Contributing
if they were built during either the primary or secondary periods of construction
but have been so altered over time that their character defining elements (siding,
windows, form) have been altered. |If their character defining elements were re-
stored, these buildings would be reclassified as Primary or Secondary Significant.

*Because, today, the downtown more clearly reflects St. Helens' years of upbuilding

following the fire of 1904, the category of "Secondary" is used to make a chronological"
distinction rather than to imply lesser significance. Buildings in both Primary and
Secondary categories are significant to St. Helens because, together, they convey the
scope of historic development, which was so dramatically punctuated by the 1904 fire.
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4)

Compatible Non-Contributing: Structures are classified as Compatible Non-

5)

Contributing -if they were built after 1933 but are compatible architecturally
(i.e. scale, materials, siting, use) with the significant structures and the

historic character of the District.

Non~-Compatible Non-Contributing: Structures are classified as Non-Compatible

Non-Contributing if they were built after 1933 and are non-compatible architec-
turally (i.e. scale, materials, siting, use) with the significant structures and

the historic character of the District. _ .

6) Vacant: Properties are classified as Vacant if there are no buildings sited on
them (i.e. vacant lots, alleys, The Plaza, parking lots).

The following is a listing of all properties within the St. Helens Downtown Historic

District:
1 ADDRESS: Strand, at east end ot Flaza The New Courthouse (1972),
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary Significant added as a wing to the
OWNER: Columbia County, St Helens OR %7051 north end elevation of the
ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 7600 1906 Courthouse, is Non-com
YEAR EUILT: 1906 S1YLE: Georgian Kevival Ppatible/Non-contributing.
ALTERATIDONS: Minor » USE: County Courthouse Annex

DESCRIPTION: The Columbia GCounty courthouse 15 a twoe story

"l

structure which sits on an above grade basement. 1t is
shaped in plan and has a symmetrical three-bay front and
five-bay sides. The roof is a flat hip with boxed eaves. The
cornice is simply detailed with crown meoldings and
modillions. The building is constructed of random coursed
kasalt and the window lintels and sills and the water table
are light gray sandstone. The windows at each story are
detailed ditferently. The windows in the basement are squat
cne over one doutkle-hung wood sash. The windows at the tirst
story are flat arched one over one double-hung wood sash with
a transom above. On the front and rear elevations ot the
building they are paired and the lintel is detailed with a
keystone. At the second story on the tront and rear
elevations of the buiflding, the windows are paired, one over
one double-hung wood sash with a segmental arch above that is
detailed with a sunburst transom window. The lintel is
constructed of stepped voussoirs. On the side elevation at
the second story, the windows are sigple. one over one
double-hung wcod sash and have a round arch. The only
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unpaired windoews on the tront and rear tacades are at the
sides of the central bay where at the tfirst story they tiank
the entrance porch. The perch has a tlat root whose eaves are
detailed the sam2 as the building. The coriginal railing along
the top of the porch root 1s now missing. The porch root 1s
supported by two groupings of three Tuscan columns which rest
on sclid stone piers and by a pilaster at the wall edge. The
entrance to the building 15 recessed behind the stone wall
which 1= detailed with a semi-circular arch. The double leat
doors with side and top lights have been replaced with
aluminum sash. The bell and clock tower which is centered on
the top of the roof has a3 square base o! metal which is
painted white, four square columns topped with a classical
entablature and steeply pitched hipped root with steep gable
pProjections facing in four directions, Each gable end has a
clock face in it. The tour taced clock was made by Seth
ThomaseConnecticut in 1910 and installed in the CGounty
Gourthouse on February 10, 1911, The kell is suspended trom
the ceiling bkelow the clock taces. The river and plaza
facades ot the building were identical. as were the north and
south side facades ot the building oniginally. In 1872 a new:
incompatikle, addition was built onto the north tacade,
however, it appears thal minimal alteration was made to the
existing courthouse to accomodate the new addition. The aonly
cther alterations to the building are® some ot the basement
windows have been altered, although their sach i1s generally
intacts and that a wrouht iron railing has been added to the
porches.

*In 1902 agitation began for a new kuilding to replace the
cld courthouse lccated on the Strand. 1t being 1n &
dilapidated condition and of inadquate size. The questkion ot
relocating the county seat came up again at this time. An
election was held in July 1803 in which St Helens and KRainier
received the two highest votes with Clatckanie and Verncnia
also contending. On the first Monday of August. a second
election was held. Clatskanie and Vernonia threw their
support to St Helens which gave this place the decision. On
that day the women ot the town gave their tamous all-day
dinner in the lower part of the cld Masonic hall where huge
roasts, hundreds of biscuits. scores ot pies and cakes and
wash boilers of beans, all provided by the Muckle Bros.. and
cooked by the women, were served to voters:. many of whom
returned for a second meal. The story is told that Rainier
attempted to import voters as hands on the steamer ‘lralda‘
which made the round trip to Portland each day, but that they
were taken off at St Helens, induced to vote tor this place
and kept there till the polls were closed. Nzither side has
ever elucidated the incident." (St Helens Sentinel-Mist
Progress Report, 1938-1849, pp 20-22)
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Atter the 1904 tire, pressure mounted to build a new
courthouse ot brick. stone or concrete 1n which the county
records would ke sate. Eventually tids were advertised tor
and at the Apri] 1906 term ot the county court the low bid ot
F.A. Erixgon, $29,67% won the job and at the May term ot the
court his bond ot %9.000 was approved and work was
immeadiately started. The rock came from nearty 4quarries and
many of the stonemasons were trom St Helens. experienced men
in quarpking and shaping rock which St Helens and nearby had
thousands of ton. Work progressed steadily and the time
approached for the laying ot the cornerstone. A committee ot
citizens was appointed and everything arranged for. except
the music. Finances of the committee were low, so Sam Miles
and Charles Muckle stepped into the breach. Miles for €1z0
and Muckle for 2100, and a Portland tand was engaged. ..
..Close to 1500 people were present. the Northern Pacific
letting off at Houlton more than Z00 people tram Portland.
Scapfroose and Warren, and the A.& G. train bringing large
numbers from Astoria, Glatskanie, Rainier and other downriver
points, A steamer from Portland also brought = large
delegation which included Governor George GChamberiin,
prominent men from Portland. and officers ot the Grand Lodge
of Masons. The program began with music and was ftollowed by
speeches. Judge Hatten presided and Gov. Chamkterlain made the
principle address. Then followed dinner ...the table was set
Wwith 600 plates and as the first ones were finished their
places were taken by others. More than a thousand people were
fed. ...In the atternocn at 2230 the Grand Lodge Otticers met

at the Masonic hall and marched to the incompleted building
for the laying ot the cornerstone. Grand Master Williamson ot
Portland putting the stone in place and conducting the
impressive ceremony. The stone was placed at the northwest
corner of the building where it is now. In the attenoon there
were water sports and boats races along with the band music
of the 16 piece band brought from Portland. and the brig day
was concluded with two dances®. (5t Helens Sentinel-Mist,
Jubilee Edition, June 23, 1939, pp. 3, 4)
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Z-A ADDRESS: Strand between Flaza % Uowlit:z
OWNER: C(City of S5t Helens, St Helens UR 97051
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Mon-Contributing

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX ATy 7500
YEAR BUILT: ca 1740 STYLE: Gimplitied Classical Revival
ALTERATIUNS: Minor USE: Vacant

DESCRIFPTION: The putlic restrcoms are a one story, almost
square structure with a symmetrical three-bay front. The
kuilding has a hip roof with boxed eaves and stepped moldings
which support a wooden gutter which is detailed to lock like
a cornice. The exterior of the building is finished with
stucco, The doors and windows have been covered aver and the
window trim removed. The building wasg desxgnedéﬂesse Doughty
for the city which has the original plans. The building faces
west onto Strand and is directly across from City Hall.

2-R ADDRESS: Strand between Plaza & Cowlitz
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: City of 5t Helens, St Helens (KR 97031

ASSESSOR MAF: 4132 TAX LOY: 7500
YEAR BUILT: ca 1915 STYLE: Craftsman
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Vacant

DESCRIPTION® The former Longshoremen’s Hall is a one story
rectangular struture with a symmetrical three-bay front. 1t
has a hipped rcot sheathed with wood shingles and boxed
eaves, It has horizontal "Calitornia* clapboard siding. Below
the drip cap and water table the foundation is constructed ot
timber pilings. Horizontal boards have been used to enciose
the bacement space under the pilings. / It has ten-light
casemant windows, generally in groups ot three. The small
front porch is centered on the front facade and has an
attached hipped root supported by two boxed posts. An
exterior fireplace chimney with a corbeled cap is located on
the north wall and is supported on a wood beam. The building
has not been wvisibly altered but it is in very poor
condition. It sits back from the street and the rear of the
building overlooks the Columbia River.
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2-C ADDRESS: Strand between Plaza & Cowlitz
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-Contributinag
OWNER: City of 5t Helens, St Helens OR 970591

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 7500
YEAR BUILT: ca 1915 STyLE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Extensive USE: Vacant

DESCRIPTION: The former Creamery is a one story arregularly
shaped building with irreqular fenestration. It has a tlat
roof with a parapet along Strand Street. 1t 1= constructed ot
hollow terra cotta tile which has been stuccoed over on the
front facade. The window and door openings have all bheen
modified. Thev have either been fillad in with concrete block
or covered cover with plywood. An addition has teen added to
the northeast corner ot the kuilding and is constructed ot
concrete block. If the building were restored it would be
classitied as Secondary Signitficant. The building taces west
cntio Strand Street

3 ADDRESS: 90 Columbia Roulevard
CLASSIF1CATION: Frimary Significant
(OWNER: Lewis & Winifred Hallmark, S350 S5.W. Fatton Rd, FPortland OR 97221

ASSESSOR MAP: 9513433 TAX LOT: 12500

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft of 1,2,3% BLOCK: 13
YEAR BUILT: 1895 STYLE: Queen Anne
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: FResidence

DESGRIPTION: The Dr Edwin Ross House is a two story Queen Anne
style residence irregular in plan. It has a hip and
multi-gabled roof with boxed eaves. A bkrick chimney is
centrally located in the hip roof. The building has shiplap
and shingle sidng and a partial stone. partial concrete
foundation. The two main entry doors on the south and west
facade have fifteem lights each’; windows are fixed and
double-hung sash. paired in the northeast gable. The porch on
the west and south elevations is "L* shaped with boxed posts
on the firet story and pilasters on the second story enclosed
area. A one and one half story addition has been made to the
north elevation. A wocoden stair allows exterior entrance to
this addition. Few alterations have been made to this
building and it remains in good condition. Some of the
original window sash is missing and the shingle siding on the
northeast elevation is not original.
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The Edwin Ross House. known tor some time as “"Tanglewcod on
the Columbia* wac built in 1895. It was the home ot Dr. Edwin
Ross and his wife Matilda Muckel Ross. Ross was born 11n lowa
in 1864 and moved to St Helens about 1890 atter both his
parents had died. He opened a drug store in St Helens which
he ocperated until 1t was destroyed in the 1504 tire. koss was
also a doctor in St Helens:. having received his M.D. in 1884
from the University of Oregon at Fortland. Edwin Koss and his
trother William organized the first bank in the county. the
Columbia County Bank. Mrs Ross was raised by her uncle
Charles Muckle, who was part owner of the Muckle Sawmill in
St Helens. (Columbia County Histery. Vol 111, pp 7 & &)

4 ADDRESS: 100 § 1st Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Wayne and Mildred Turnpner, 100 S, 1st, St Helens OR Y/031

ASSESSOR MAP: 41321 TAX LOT: 2000

PLAT: St. Helens Lor: 11 BLOCK: 12
YEAR BUILT: ca. 1922 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: #Mimdmat Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The Burcham House is one and a halt stories,
rectangular in shape with an irregular two-bay front and
irregular side fenestration. The gable roof is oriented with
the eave end toward the street and has a large shed dormer
with double-hung windows across the front. The rake ends ot
the building are supported with purlins. The main body ot the
house ic sided with "California® clapboards, while the peaks
of the gable ends and the dormer are sided with shingles.
Below the water table and drip cap> the foundation is sided
with vertical V-joint tongue and groove. The windows are
wooden, doukle-hung sash and on the tront have various
numbers of vertical panes in the upper sash. The windows on
the sides are one over one. The front door has three beveled
panes which are separated by dentiles from one panel below.
The reentrant porch which extends across the front ot the
house has boxed. truncated. obelisk posts ocn a solid rail.
Cantilevered bays are located on the north and south sides of
the building, and an exterior fireplace chimney is also on
the north side of the building., The lower foundation has a
stucco wash. Alterations to the Burcham house are minimal and
consist of the rear porch having been glassed in. The front
facade of the houcse faces west onto 1st Street and the rear
facade of the building overlooks the Golumbia River.
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The Eurcham Houce was built in 1922 shortly atter Alkert and
Anna Burcham moved to St Helens. *Burcham, a contractor.
built most of the bridges in the county, the dock and the
jetties. He died in 1941, (St Helens Sentinel-Mist, June 15,

1961 p.2) Mrs. Burcham. who was active 1n many public service
crgainzations as well as her church, was honored by the
American Association ot University Women in 1952 as a Woman
of Achievement for her volunteer service to the community.
She was the first woman member of the school board on which
she served for nine years. She was also one ot the organizers
of the Columbia County Chapter ot the American Red Cross and
a founder of the St. Helens Public Library. She died on May
27,1874 at the age of 87.

5 ADDRESS: 110 5. lst Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatibie, Non-contributing
OWNER: E. A. Earlene Gorman, 110 S 1st , St Helens UR 970351

ASSESSOR MAF: 4132 Tax LOT: 2900

FLAT: &t. Helens LOT: 10 BLOCE: 1%

YEAR BUILT: 1939 STYLE: Eaveless fract House
ALTERATIONS: Me-pimad Mirom USE: Residence

DESCRIFTION: The house is a one story irregularly shaped
structure with a hipped roof and horizontal clapboard siding.
It faces west onto lst street.

b ADDRESS: 120 §. First Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Wayne & Wanda Hawkins, 120 § lst, S5t Helens OR 970351

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 2800

FLAT: S5t. Helens LOT: ¢ BLOCK ¢ Z
YEAR BUILT: 1914 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Minimal A7 0< USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The Shinn House is a two and a halt story
rectangqular structure with a spmetrical three-bay front. The
gable roof is tiled and oriented with the eave end towards
the street. A gabled dormer with a fixed tour—-hight window is
centered on the front roeotf. The gable and eave &nds ot the
structure are detailed with exposed rafter tails and stacked
purlin brackets with ornamentally cut ends. The house 1is
sided with horizontal clapboards on the f{first story and
narrow and widely spaced shingles cn the second story. The
foundation is concrete with a stucco tinish. The double-hung
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wood sash windows have various number lights (six, e2ight and
ten) above. ocne pane below. The tront porch is centersd and
extends across a third of the front facade. It has 'a gabk@led
roof with stick woerk and purlin detailing. 1t has two large
boxed posts on clapboard sided piers and cside rails ot
crnamentally cut boards.This detailing 12 also used on a
second story porch at the rear ot the house which overlooks
the Columbia River. There are cantilevered bay windows on the
north and south sides of the house and an interior chimney
with a corbelled top extends frem the center ot the root. The
alterations to the house are minimals a small addition has
been built on the north side and a detached deck has been
built south of the house, and the area west of the deck has
been asphalted. The house faces west onto 1st street and the
rear of the house overlooks the Columbia River.

The Shinn House was built tor Gecrge $hinn, an atterney and
president of the Columbia Abstract Gompany, by J.H. (Hollie)
Cronkite.

7 ADDRESS: 130 5. 1st Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Historic Nen-Contributing
OWNER: Fobert & Margaret Kinnear, 130 5 1st, 5t Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41221 TAX LOT: 2700
FLAT: St. Helens LOT: & BLOCK: 1Z
YEAR BUILT: 1928 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Moderate-tEuxtensive USE: Residence

DESGRIPTION: The one story structure with daylight basement is
slightly "L* shaped. It has a low pitched gable roof with
brackets at the rake end and a combination ot nine over one
double-hung sash and ten by ten casement windows. The smail
front stoop with attached gable rootr is supported by
krackets. The house has been moderately to extensively
-moditied. It has been entirely resided with aluminum siding
and shutters, and aluminum storm windows have also been
added. In additicn, the entire front and southern side yard
have baen asphalted. 11 the structure were restored it would
ke classified ag a secondary significant structure. The house
faces west onto 15t street.
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8 ADDRESS:  1BO S, 1st Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Sigmitficant
OWNER: Richard % Marjorie Lewic, 4404 NM.E. 11%Hth vt, Fortlandg UK Y7220

ASSESSOR MAF: 4132 TAX LOT: 2300
FLAT: St. Helens LoT: 2 BLOCK: 12
YEAR BUILY: 191 S1YLE: Burngcolow
ALTERATIONS:  Hinor USE:  Residen-e

DESCRIFTION® The Arthur Georgqe Houss 15 one and & half stornies
with a2 symmetrical three-bay tront. 1t is *L*' shaped in plan
with an intersecting gable reoof with ornamentally cut
bkrackets at the gable ends. 1t 15 sided with *Calitornia*
clapboarde and the foundation has a stucco wash. The windows
are broad, one over one, double-hung wood sash and are paired
in the gable ends., The reentrant porch extends across tweo
thirds of the front and is supported by two baxed posts o a
solid sided rail. Only the the porch handrail appears to have
bkeen moditied. The house faces west onto lst street and the
rear of the property cverlooks the Columbia River.

9 ADDRESS: West side of Strand between 5t Helens % Flaza

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

OWNER: Columbia County, S5t Helens OR 97051

ASSESS0OR MAF: 4132 TAX LOT: 600

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 125 13,14,15
BLOCE: 11

USE: Parking Lot

DESCRIPTION: The northern three quarters of the site 1s paved
for a parking lot and planted with modern ornamental
plantings. The southern quarter of the site which taces the
Plaza- is maintained as a lawn. This site formerly contained
three older houses and a commercial building which were
demolished in the 1970's for construction of the parking lot
in conjuncticon with the new addition to the Gounty
Courthouse. One of the houses which was demolished was the
LeMont house built in 1850 by Capt. Francis LeMont who
bkrought the lumber for the house from his home state of
Maine. He also brought lumber for other early houses
including the Knighton house. The commercial building. owned
by the Dillards: housed the telephone company from about 1930
to 1962.
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10 ADDRESS: tu Flaza
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant :
OWNER: Julius Spillman et al, 221 8.k, BSth Ave. Fortlamod UR 97410

ASSESSUOR MAF: 41321 TAX LUT: 1800

FLAT: &t. Helens LOT: Pt 0t B BLOCE: 11
YEAR BUILT: ca. w2k STYLE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Modzrate USk: Lommercial Service

DESCRIFPTION: The structure 1¢ a ons storvy rvrectangular shaped
building with a cne-bay tront. The tlat root has a parapet
wall along the front 2dge ot the building whicn faces south
on the Plaza. 1t is constructed ot red and chocolate colored
glazed brick with a raked pattern. The main panel on the
parapet is slightly recessed and is constructed ot red brick
only. The cornice is detailed with vertical bricks and an
ornamental tile cap. The store front windows ot the building
have been altered with aluminum sash and diagonal painted
cedar tongue and groove siding below the windows. A fixed
canopy also constructed ot cedar ciding extends across the
front ot the building. The comimon wall to the =ast has been
covered over with tongue and grocve beveled vertical siding
in & pseudo-mansard shake root. While the alterations are
considered moderate. they appear to be reversible. The
Bennett Building (No. 13) is similar 1in design and materials
and appears to have been designed by the same person. Mr.
Doughty. The Eennett Building, theretore. might ke used as an
aid in restoration. '

11 ADDRESS: 236 % 240 S, 1st Street
CLASSIFICATION: Non-Compatible Non-Contributing
OWNER: Rose Federici, 144 §. 14th, St Helens OR %7051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 1700
PLAT: St. Helens L.LOT: Pt of 8 BLOCK: 11
YEAR BUILT: 1938 STYLE: Commercial

ALTERATIONS: Moderate-Extensive USE: Ketail % Service

DESCRIPTION: The structure is a one story rectangular building
with a symmetrical two-bay tront. It is constructed of poured
concrete and originally had wood sash storefront windows. The
building has been moderately to extensively altered. A
pseudo-mansard overhang has been built along the tront and
side elevation of the building and the tacade of 240 S. 1st
St has been covered with roman brick and the windows and door
have been changed to aluminum sash. It the building had not
been altered in this fashion, it would have been classitied
as compatible non-contributing.
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12 ADDRESS: 230 9 1st street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant

OWNER: St Helens Local #1, A.W.FP &% P.W. % Carro! Judkins,
Box 657, St Helens UR 27051

ASSESSOR MAFP: 41321 TAX LUT: 1800

FLAT: St. Helens Lto71: Ft 8, 9 BLUCE: 11
YEAR BUILT: 192& ) STYLE: Neo-Classical Kevival
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Union Hall

DESCRIFTION: The former First National Bank i1s a two story
rectangular building with a symmetrical one bayv-tront. The
front tacade of the buildng 1s detailed as a classical temryle
with simplitied fluted Corinthian columns on either side ot
the entrance supporting a classical entablature. The
entablature 1s traditionally detailed. with architrave, a
smooth frieze- engraved with the name ot the bank. and a
cornice detailed with dentiles and pineapple drops at the
corners, The entrance is detailed with a classical cornice
supported by consoles and doutble doors constructad ot an oak
veneer with a central glass panel. The entrancs 1s set in a
wall of obscure glass panes approximately 18 by 36 inches,
The classical crnaments are constructed in a cream colored
terra cotta with a chocolate fleck and the body ot the
building is constructed ot honey colored brick in a common
bond. The foundation of the building is constructad ot
grayish-white terra cotta blocks approximatele 11 x 19 inches
in size with a ribbed texture. The tront tacade ot the
building has keen minimally altered. The windows adjacent to
tlhe entrance and two niches at either side of the building at
the tirst story have been covered over with cedar siding. 1t
appears that the windows are in tact beneath, and restoration
could easilv be accomplished. The building taces west on 1st
ctreet.

The First Natienal Bank first opened tor business in 1818 in

a building owned by Thomas Dillard. *The tirst step ot
progress in buildings was taken in February 19Z6 when the
bank was moved to a newly built brick building on 1st Street
«eealt was in this building that banking was carried on for

Z6 years (1926-1348). OQwnership and management ot the First
National Bank was shifted in 1930 when the expanding United
States National Bank of Portland purchased the crganization
and its affiliated unit. The St Helens bank was an attiliate
with the Fortland bank for three years and in 1932 became a
direct branch ot United States National Bank. ...And through
the years that tollowed the 5t Helans bank grew along with
the city until there arose a need tor a newer and larger bank
tuilding.,® (S5t Helens Sentinel-Mist, A Progress Report,
1919-14948) The existing U.8. National Eank building was
cpened May 10, 1948 at the corner ot 1st and St Helens
streets.
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13 ADDRESS: 220, 222 ¥ 224 S 1st Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Van Natta & Peterson, Gray Building, St Helens OR 97031

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 1900

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of @ BLOCK: 11

YEAR BUILT: 1925 STYLE: Commercial

ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: Ofices and Vacant Retail

DESCRIPTION: The Gray Building is a two story, rectangular
shaped structure with a symmetrical three-bay tront. It has a
flat rocf with a parapet across the front facade.» and is
sided with stucco on its upper stories and glazed apricot
colored tiles below its storefront windows. The storefront
windows are wood sash- and the windows at the second story
are one over one, double-hung wood sash. The building has
been moderately altered. It appears that the original siding
may have been covered over with stuccoc. Aluminum sunshades
have been added to the windows at the second story. and each
of the second story windows has been modified for an air
conditioning unit. However, most of these alterations appear
easily repairable except for the siding. The Gray Building
faces west on 1st street. in downtown St Helens® commercial
core.

*Von A. Gray may appropriately be termed the pioneer jeweler
of St. Helens. . . In 1810 he established the first jewelry
business in St Helens... (St Helens Mist Special Edition,
Sept 15, 1916) In 1825, Von Gray constructed a building for
his own business as well as other tenants on 1st street/ His
store was located at 220 S 1st.
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14 ADDRESS: 210 § st Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: John & Florence Svoboda, Rt 1 Box 408, Scappoose OR 970536

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 2000

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 10 BLOCK: 11 _
YEAR BUILT: 1928 STYLE: Commercial % Retail
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Movie Theater

DESCRIPTION® The Golumbia Theater is a two story rectangular
building with a three-bay symmetrical front. It has a f{flat
roof, detailed with a parapet across its front. The second
story is decorated with three recessed panels with ornamental
motifs within the center of each. An eagle on a shield with
arrows is on the center panel and garlands with swags are on
the side panels. The panels have a simfle cornice above thems.
from which a brick parapet extendsf/ﬁvﬁh ornamental tiles.
Brick pilasters run from the cornice . to the ground. THe two
storefronts have wood and copper sash windows with an
entrance toward the center bay. The doors are wood with a
central glass pane!l and transom akove. The theatre entrance
and marquee were modified in the 1840°s. The entrance was
covered with burgandy and pink glazed tiles. and the
suspended canopy was replaced with a neon margquee, It appears
that the only other alteration to the building has been a
painting of the original honey colored brick. The building
faces west on 1st street, in the central business district of
downtown St. Helens.

*G. 0. Garrison, operator of the Columbia theatre, came to St
Helens in 1927 and purchased the Liberty theatre from Lew
Cates, and the Grand theater from L. H. Walton. Mr. Garrison
operated the Liberty for about a year. Believing that St.
Helens should have a more modern theatre, he made
arrangements for the Golumbia. one of the finest small city
theatres in the state. It was opened in 1828. The CGColumbia
seats 700 and is equipped with the most modern apparatus and
appointments. .. ..Before coming to St. Helens. Mr. Garrison
operated the Colonial theatre in Eugene and the Laurelhurst
in Portland. He has been in Oregon for 13 years and came to
this state from Beatrice, Nebraska, where he also operated
picture theatres. Twenty five years in the picture business
(since the intancy of theﬁi:é#?picture) qualifies MrGarrison as
one of the leading theater operators in the state." (Isbister
Scrapbook. ca 1933 newspaer clipping)
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15 ADDRESS: 200 H. 1st Street
CLASSIFICATIUN: Compatible Nen-Contributing
.OWNEK: U.S. National Bank -Frop. biv. FL.3
fO Box 4412, Fartland OR v720Y

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 FaX LUT: 2100
FLAT: St. Helens LUT: 11 BLOUCK: 11
YEAR BUILT: 1948 SfviLeE: Uommercial
ALTERATIONS: Minor USk: Bank

DESCRIPTION: The U.S5. National Eank 15 a one story:
rectangularly-shaped structure with a tlat rcot. The body ot
the building iz built of honey colored brick- the cornice and
string course ot cream colered terra cotta. and the
foundation ot black and honey mottled terrazzo. The entrance
is detailed with carrera glass and an aluminurm cantilevered
canopy. The windows are steel sash with tfive hornzontal
panes,

16 ADDRESS: Plaza and lst Street

CLASSIFICATLION: Vacant (Secondary Signiticant)

OWNER: Columbia County, St Helens UK 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 1AX LOT: 7700

FLAT: 5t. Helens LUT: Pt of 6,7,16,17 BLOCK: 11

YEAR BUILT: 1907
USE: Park

DESCRIFTION®* The Flaza is a lawn area surrounded by a pipe and
chain fence. Four maple trees are planted along the nerth and
south sides and ornamental shrubs are planted at the east and
west ends, and around the central tlagpole. At the east end
cf the Plaza is a commerative plaque tor the Warrnior Rock
bell:- a fog bell cast in Philadelphia in 185%, and tirst used
at Cape Disappointment. Later in 1889, it was located at
Warrior Rock on Sauvie Island until 1969,

The Plaza was constructed and dedicated as part of the
development of the County Courthouse in 1806. Previously the
area had been platted as Block 11 and developed with
buildings in a fashion similar to the rest of downtown. In
fact, the former county courthouse had been located on the
site of what is now the Plaza. In 1907, atfter completion of
the courthouse, the contractor. Fred A. Erixgon ot Albany,
was given the contract to construct The Plaza . Plaza Street
which borders the green space on the north and south was cut
through at this time to make a grand entrance to the Gounty
Courthouse which is situated to the east The FPlaza . The
plantings, paths. and other details ot the square have been
renewed over the years, although the general contiquration ot
the square is as it was originally designed.
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17 ADDRESS: 263 Strand Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: City of 8t Helens, St Helens OR Y7051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LuT: 701

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: 18, pt of 1Y BELOCE: 11
YEAR BUILT: 19us S1YLE: Lommercial
ALTERATIOUNS: Minor UsE: City Hall

DESCRIPTION: The tormer Columbia County Bank 15 a two story
rectangular shaped structure with a three-tay front. It has a
flat roof with a parapet along Strand and Flaza. Ilts Strand
and Flaza facadecs are constructed of random coursed basait
which was locally quarried. The stone is cut 1n wvariocus size
square blocks ranging trom four inches to sixteen The windows
ar2 one over one double hung wood sash and are segmentally
arched at the second story and round arched at the tirst
story. The arches are stepped wvousscirs ot the locally
quarried stone at the first story and relieved arches with a
keystone at the second story. A simple string course with
purlins below defines the parapet above the second story. On
the front facade on Strand Streel a sandstone block aktove the
string course indicates that the ba&k was constructed in
1308. The north facade of the building was originally
four-bays wide,. however, by 1815, the building had been
extended to the west. The new addition included an exterior
extrance to a staircase to the second story and three
storefront windows at the first story level. While this
addition is not readily apparent #3¥s on the Plaza facade, /7 /s
cn the alley facade. The original building was constructed ot
uncoursed rukble on its alley tacade while the later addition
was constructed ot poured concrete. Only minor alterations
have been made to the building. The wood sash of the front
entrance on Strand has been replaced with aluminum and the
narrow secondary entrance on Strand has been covered over
with plywood. On Plazar the storefront windows have been
altered. The original sash has been replaced with anodized
aluminum sash and a secondary entrance for handicapped access
to the GCouncil Chambers has been added in one oi the
storefront windows. The building is located diagonally across
from the Courthouse, and faces Strand with its front facade
and the Plaza with its secondary facade.
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The Columbia GCounty Bank *is the oldest bank 1n the county.
and from the standpoint ot capital stcck and resources 1s
also the strongest in the county. The Columbia GCounty Bank
was tounded by William M. Ross in the vyear 1305. 1t was
started on a very small capital, but Mr. Roess saw the
poscibilities ahead and believed &St Helens would grow and
therefore the bank would grow. The first few years were 3
struggle and Mr. Ross had to do considerable insurance and
other work to keep things going but businefs was Increasing
and the manner 1n which it was handled inspired the
confidence ot its depaositors. During the panicky times when
other banks paid out clearing house certiticates: and
huskanded their stock of geld and silver, it was not
necessary tor the bank here to pay out anything but cash.’
(St Helens Mist, Special Edition, Sept. 15, 1818)

William Ross, brother of Dr. Edwin Ross. located in Golumbia

" County after having visited his brother 1in 1305. "Since
locating here Mr. Ross has done much to put St Helens wheare
it is. He hats served as president ot the Commercial Club,
City Clerk: member ot the City Council and other positions
where he could be 0t benefit to the town. He i prominent in
traternal circles and has held important ottices in the
lodges.” tibid.) The bank failed during the Great Depression,

18 ADDRESS: 273 % 277 Strand
CLASSIF1CATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Hazel Vagt, 167 S 1st, S5t Helens UR 97051

ASSESSOR MAFR: 41321 TAX LOT: BOO

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 1Y BLOCK: 11
YEAR BUILT: 1929 STYLE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: FRetail % Office

DESCRIPTION® The Bennett Building is a one story. rectangular
shaped structre with a three-bay front. 1t has a flat roof
with a parapet across its Strand facade. The tront facade ot
the building is finished in red and dark brown glazed raked
brick. The brick parapet is detailed with three recessed
panels. The storefront windows at either side of the btuilding
are fixed with the two storefront entrances being provided 1n
the central recessed bay. Above the storefront windows are
mezzanine windows. A simple, classical cornice caps the
mezzanine windows. The base of’fstorefmnt windows are
detailed with honey brown and black glazed tiles. '

Harry Bennett came to St Helens in September 1909 and opened
a barber shop. contectionery and pool and card reom on lower
Strand. In 1823 J.E. Coughty designed this building tor
Bennett on upper Strand.
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19 ADDRESS: (283) Strand

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

OWNER: Hazel Vagt, 167 S. 1st, St Helens OR 97051
ASSESSOR MAP: 41321 TAX LOT: 900

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft of 20 BLOCK: 11

USE: Vacant Lot

20 ADDRESS: (293) Strand

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

OWNER: Frances Craver, 145 §. 1lst, St. Helens OR 97051
ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 1000

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 20, 21 BLOCK: 11
USE: Vacant Lot

DESCRIPTION: This property was the former site of the St Helens
I.0.0.F. and Rebekah Lodges built in 1808 during the
secondary period of development in St Helens. When the
building was damaged by fire in 1950, the St Helens and
Houlton Lodges combined and a new lodge hall was built in
West St Helens.

21 ADDRESS: 295 Strand
CLASSIFICATIDN: Compatible, Non-Contributing
OWNER: Daniel Martin, 295 Strand, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 1090

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 21, 22 BLOCK: 11
YEAR BUILT: 1953 STYLE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: Tavern

DESCRIPTION: The building is a one story. retangular structure
with a flat roof. It is constructed of concrete block with a
stucco finish. The original storefront windows are altered
although the openings are intact. The building faces east
onto Strand.
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22 ADDRESS: 30 Cowlit:
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Lorraine Jeter, 30 Cowlitz, St Helens OR 970351

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 1100

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 21, 22 BLOCK: 11
YEAR BUILT: 1920; 1908 STYLE: Mission Revival
ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: Apartments % Hotel

DESCRIPTION: The Orcadia Hotel is a two story rectangular
building with a flat roof and parapet along Cowlitz and
Strand. The exterior ot the building is stuccoed. The
building has six over one double~-hiywoodursy sash windows at
the second story which are generally paired. The storefront
windows along Cowlitz and Strand have been filled in except
for one bay on Cowlitz at the west end of the building. The
wood sash storefront window consists of two large panes with
a six light mezzanine window above. At the west end of the
Orcadia Hotel is an older building which was built during the
primary period. It was modified to conform with the later
building in 1930. Originally, it was a three story wood
framed building with two over two wood sash windows.

The St Helens Sentinel of August 14, 1930 states "One of the
finest improvements to the city of St Helens in recent days
is marked by the completion of the new Orcadia Hotel building
at Strand and Cowlitz streets. This building was erected by
Mrs Thomas Isbister, to replace the pioneer structures which
were recently wrecked after having fultilled their mission of
service to the community. The new building was erected
primarily for the Orcadia Hotel but there are three store
rooms on Strand, the hotel occupying the second story, with
lobby on Cowlitz street. The building has a 50 foot frontage
on Strand and 58 feet on Cowlitz. The three story section of
the former hotel has been remodeled and modernized, with
exterior finish of stucco> making it conform in appearance
with the new building. The remodeled part contains a modern
dining room and kitchen, and 2Z sleeping rooms on the second
and third floors. There are eleven rooms in the new building
with steam heat. hot and cold water, two with private bath,
and two with individual showers. ...The new building was
erected under the supervision of the A.J. Matot Building
Construction company of Portland, contractors, who handled
the concrete, carpenter, door and window, and hardware work.
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Mrs. Elizabeth Isbister. with whom the building is most
closely associated, "was born November 28, 1869, on Orkney
Island in the Scapa Flow oft northern Scotland. She was
married ... August 28, 1889 in the farmhouse where she was
born. It was June 8, 1891, when Mr and Mrs Isbister sailed
for America. landing in Portland.' (Isbister family
Scrapbook: Sentinel Mist newspaer article.) "On December 10,
1908, they purchased the Orcadia Hotel which was then being
built. Mr and Mrs Isbister named the hotel for their
birthplace, the Orkneys. They continued to operate the hotel
until 1926 when they leased the property to Mrs Margaret
Hoffman their daughter: who operates it at the present time.®
(Isbister Family Scrapbook, newspaper clipping.)

22 ADDRESS: 298 S. 1st Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: F.J. Lackmer, 298 S. ist, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 1200

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 1, pt of 2 BLOCK: 1}
YEAR BUILT: 1919 STYLE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: Cate and Utfice

DESCRIPTION: The St Helens Cafe, formerly knows as the Hewitt
Building, is a commercial building on the coner of 1st and
Gowlitz, constructed in 1918, It was designed by J.H.
Cronkite, a local builder who built many residences and
businesses in town. It is one story, rectangular in plan. and
five bays wide, on the west facade. It has a tlat roof.
corrugated metal siding, and a concrete foundation. The wood
frame storefront windows have one light each. The main corner
entrance door which faces south has one Jight and sidelights.
Few alterations have bteen made to the building which is
situated on the edge of iﬁﬁommercial area in St Helens.

The St Helens Cafe, started in 1916, was located in the
Muckle Building for fifteen years. It was moved to its
present location in 1931 and has been there since. (St Helens
Sentinel-Mist, A Progress Report, 1939-1949
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24 ADDRESS: 280 S 1st Street

CLASSIFICATION: Frimary Significant .

OWNER: Robert N. & Sharon Israel, 280 S 1st, St Helens OR 97051
ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 1300

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 2%, pt of 2, 4 BLOCK: 11
YEAR BUILT: 1890 STYLE: 1Italianate

ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION® The Richard Cox House is two stories, square in
plan and three bays wide. It has a hip roof with decorative
brackets> shiplap siding, and a basement covered with woad
lattice work on the west elevation. Doukle-hung sash windows
of one over one remain with cornices and shutters intact. The
porch acroess the west facade has turned posts and a
decorative jigsaw cut railing. Wooden steps lead up to the
porch. A three sided bay window is attached to the north
facade. The basement door, covered by a hipped roof, stoop is
also on the north facade. The residence is in good condition
and has had few alterations. The widows walk which once
crested the top of the hip roof i1s missing and the chimney
appears to have been altered. This building was placed on the
National Register of Historic Places in 13E2.

The Cox house is signiticant in its association with the
original owners, Richard Cox and his wife Anna Muckle. Cox
was born in England in 1843 and came to St Helens in 1877
where he was the bookkeeper of the Muckle Lumber Company for
seventeen years. He was also elected County Treasurer and
later served as County Judge for two years. (Golumbia GCounty
History, V11, p. 5:6) The house was constructed in 18380 by
Arthur George, a local contractor and relative ot the family.
The house was moved onto a its present site in 1812 and
raised onto a basement. Alice 'Lois’ Cox Williams. the
granddaughter of Anna Muckle Cox owned the house for a long
time after her grandparents had died. Lois was secretary to
H.F. McCormick, who started the St Helens Lumber Gompany in
1808 on the site of the original Muckle Lumber Company mill
which burned in 1904, Alice Williams and her husband Emmett
operated the Williams Cash Grocery in St Helens tor many
years. (National Register of Historic Places Inventory
Nomination Form® Cox-Williams House, prepared by Alfred M.
Staehli, 1982)
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25 ADDRESS: 274 S ist Street

CLLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant

OWNER: J.H. & Van Vorhees Clawson, PO Box 247, St Helens OR 97051
ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 1400

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft of 4 BLOCK: 11

YEAR BUILT: 1921 STYLE: Concrete Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Commercial

DESCRIPTION® This one story poured concrete commercial building
was once the J.C. Penneys building according to old timers of
St Helens. A 18Z1 Sandborn map ot St Helens shows the
building used as a grocery and clothing store. It is
rectangular in plan, with a flat roof. Two bays ot storetront
windows, of one light each, are on the west facade, with
decorative tile below., The building faces west towards the
commercial area of old Downtown 5t Helens. The plywood which
now covers the upper portion ot the building appears to be a
temporary alteration.

26 ADDREES: 260 §. 1st Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary Significant
OWNER: Lyle % Katherine Fieper, Rox 5396, St Helens Or. 97031

ASSESSOR MAP: 41321 TAX LOT: 1500

PLAT: St. Helens L.0T: S BLOCK: 11

YEAR BUILT: 1897 STYLE: Gothif w/Craftsman Addition
ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: Vacant and Office

DESCRIPTION: Christ Episcopal Church is a one story irregularly
shaped structure. with a three-bay front, and regular side
fenestration. Its steeply pitched gable roof has open eaves
and a crown moulding on the barge boards. The gable end is
oriented towards the street and a gable projection extends
across two-thirds of the front of the building. The Church’s
windows are very vertical and pointed, and are made up of
nine lights of amber colored glass. The entrance, located at
the center front of the building, is within a reentrant
porch. The porch is detailed with one boxed post. and a
railing of vertical boards with a top and bottom cap. The
double leat front doors have one light above and one panel
below, and are topped by a two-light amber glass transom. A

- one story Craftsman style Guildhall has been added to the
eastern rear of the building. The Guildhall has a hipped
roof, shingled siding, eight over one double-hung wood sash
windows, and a swept roof porch entrance on plaza.
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Although Episcopal church services had been held in St.
Helens since 1853, it wasn’t until 1897 when Mrs. Hannah
Thyiweiwicz, and James and Charles Muckle donated a lot that
the Episcopal Church had a residence of their own. "The Janwwy
20,1897 issue of The Cregon Mist stated® "It is expected that -
work will start on the new Episcopal church within a few
weeks.’ February 19, 1897: "The lumber for the new church
arrived from Portland Tuesday. and carpenter A. H. George is
busy framing the building.” March 12, 1897 "Work on the new
Episcopal Church 1s progressing in a most satistactory
manner, and by another week, it the weather is favorable, the
edifice will be nearly finished.’” (GColumbia County
Historian,. Vol. V1 Pg. 5% *In 1910, Mr Charles Muckle
promised the ladies the money for the building ot a sgusd
guildhall, and at the same time the guild raised three
hundred dollars for a recessed chanfiel to be added to the
church, and the hall and church were directly connected by
passageways on both sides of the chancel. This various
generous gift on the part of Mr. Muckle enatled the ladies to
tuild a very neat, one story guildhall: costing about $1250.

. -« After the guildhall was built, the church did not
harmonize, so this last summer, 1t was decided to shingle the
church all over, and paint or stain it to correspond with the
hall.* (St Helens Mist, Special Edition, Sept 15, 1818) From
early photographs ot the church. it appears that some
moditications have been made to the front facade of the
building. in addition to its being resided. A bell tower, «us
concstructed in 1807, at the northwest corner of the church;
at that time the front porch had a small attached gable roof.
It appears that the bell tower and original entrance have
been incorporated into the gable projection on the front
facade.
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27 ADDRESS: 31 Cowlitz Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Mary Conchita Lawson, 13309 Berwick St, Saratoga CA 95070

ASSESSOR MAF: 41324 TAX LOT: 100

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft of 12 BLOCK: 10
YEAR BUILT: 1909 - STYLE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Vacant

DESCRIPTION:® The Muckle Building is a three story, rectangular
structure with a flat roof. It is constructed of red brick in
a common bond pattern and decorated with pressed brick. The
location of windows and pilasters are irregular on both its
Cowlitz and Strand faces. The string-courses are detailed
with concrete pressed bricks set on point and above the

- storefront windows a molded metal cornice exists. The
storefront windows, which appear to have been moditied over
the years, are topped by mezzanine windows. The building is
generally intact but has not been well maintained for a
number of years. The brick work needs repointing and the
metal cornice at the top of the third story is missing.

*In 1909 Muckle Brothers was succeeded by James Muckle & Son.,
and in 1910 they moved to the newly built Muckle Building,
leasing the entire building (from Mrs Edwin Ross) in which
they orerated a large department store. Later the grocery
department was sold to A.S. Harrison and the furniture and
hardware departments to Muckle Hardware Go. as the firm
wished to specialize in the dry goods line." (St Helens Mist,
Special Edition, Sept 15, 1916) The upper stories of the
Muckle Building were used tor offices and residential rooms.
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28 ADDRESS: 313, X185 & 217 Strand
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: 6Grace Sconneland, Z13 Strand, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41324 TAX LOT: 200

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 13; Pt of 12,14 BLOCK: 10
YEAR BUILT: 1912 STYLE: Commercial

ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Antique Store

DESCRIPTION® The Morgus Building is a two story rectangular
structure with a flat roof and parapet walls along its Strand
street facade. It has a three-bay front, which on the first
story consists of a central entrance doorway flanked by two
store fronts. The second story of the building has one over
one double-hung wood sach windows, two in either ot the end
bays. The cornice of the building is detailed with bricks
that are corbeled. Each of the storefronts consist of a
central doorway with a large window on either side and
mezzanine windows above. The doorways hawve transocms above.
The building has only been minimally altered since its
extensive renovation in 181Z. The original brick which is
similar to that used in the Morgus Building to its north, has
been painted over.

In 1898 Mr and Mre Henry Morqus came to &t Helens. *They came
with nothing more than such a determination and a few
dollars, really not very many. but enough to start a small
mercantile establishment....The business increased year atter
year. Other buildings became necessary to store the ever
increasing stock and several warehouses were erected. A tew
years later adjoining lots were secured and other business
buildings built, each one finding tenants before completion,
until now the Morgus buildings along the Strand are all
occupied. In addition to his building operations along the
Strand, Mr Morgus kept securing other lots in wvarious places
in the city and as fast as his means would permit buildings
were erected until at the present time Mr Morgus is quite an
extensive owner of residence property in the city, reaching
from the river to the railroad."

After the 1904 fire, "the construction of the first concrete
building in St Helens was commenced by Mr Margus. and atter
its completion the stock of general merchandise was removed
there....14n191Z the one-story concrete business building was
found to be too small to carry on the extensive business then
being done. and an addition was built by taking out the front
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and putting in a brick tront. extending the walls up another
story and adding 30 feet in width by 100 feet on the side;
until now the Morgus Building is classegd as one of the
substantial business buildngs ot the city." (5t Helens Mist,
Special edition. Sept 15, 1916)

29 ADDRESS: 325 & 327 Strand
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signitficant
OWNER: Grace Sonneland, 315 Strand, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41324 TAX LOT: 300

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 14 BLOCK: 10
YEAR BUILT: 1908 STYLE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Antique Storage

DESCRIPTION: The building is a one story rectangular structure
of wood frame construction with a flat root and parapet along
Strand street. It has a two-bay front of which the northern
bay ic intact. The northern bay consists ¢f a central docrway
flanked by storefront windows and the doorway and windows are
‘topped by solid sheets of obscure glase at the mezzanine
window level. The southern storefront has been modified to
provide a garage door entrance. The only other major
alteration is that the building has been covered over with
composition siding in a brick pattern. however, the original
shiplap siding is intact underneath.

30 ADDRESS: 330 S Ist Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary Signitficant
OWNER: 6Grace M. Sonneland, 313 Strand, St Helens OR 97031

ASSESSOR MAFP: 41324 TAX LOT: 400

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 8,9, Pt of 10 BLOCK: 10
YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Vernacular Farmhouse
ALTERAT IONS: Moderate USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The Lope House reflects buildings constructed
during the primary building period. It is a one and a half
story wood frame residence. three bays wide, and "L* shape in
plan. It has a steeply pitched gable roof with boxed eaves,
is sided with shiplap: and rests on a concrete foundation.
Windows are twelve over one and eight over one double-hung
sash. The one story porch on the west facade is supported by
boxed posts. Alterations to the porch and windows appear to
have been made in the Graftsman style.
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31 ADDRESS: 71 Cowlitz Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Dennis % Sammie Cardwell, 71 Cowlitz, St Helens

ASSESSDR MAP: 41324 TaX LOT: 500

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 11, Pt of 10 BLOCK: 10
YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Craftsman
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Tavern

DESCRIPTION® The addition to the St Helens Hotel is a three
story wood frame building, "L* shape in plan with a bellcast
hip rocof. 1t is sided with shiplap and has a%oncrete
foundation. covered by &tmgh vertical boards wster=tash The
windows are one aver one double hung sash and fixed with two
and four lights in the basement. The entrances to the
building are from 1lst and Cowlitz streets. These entrances
have been altered over the years, but could easily be
restored.

The St Helens Hotel was originally located on the Plaza. It
served as the city hall and was later called the Opera House.
In 1300 the McGormick family purchased the building and had
it moved to 1st and Gowlitz streets, where it was used as a
hotel. Many of the men working at the McGormick mill boarded
at the hotel. The addition (which remains? was constructed in
1910 to accomodate the overflow of boarders. Oldtimers of St
Helens remember a banquet at the St Helens hotel given by the
Commercial Club in 181Z. Two hundred citizens dined at the
hotel that day after watching the launching of the
*Multnomah', the largest ship built on the Columbia River in
the McCormick shipyards. (Isbister Family scrapbook. *Part of
the Hotel to Come Down," Sentinel-Mist, Sept 714, 1834). The
hotel was demotlished in 1854.

32 ADDRESS: 164 N, 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Mildred Wilkins, 1464 N. 2nd, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAP: 513433 TAX LOT: 11600
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 7 BLOCK: 16
YEAR BUILT: 1924 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Minor-Moderate USE: Residence

DESGRIPTION* The one story building is *L* shaped with an
intersecting 4gable roof, with gable projections. It has
horizontal beveled tongue and groove siding with vertical
tongue and groove below the drip cap and water table. The
barge boards are plain and there are no brackets. The
original windows appear to have been three over one double-
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hung wood sash, with the upper sash being three vertical
panes. The front porch is slightly recessed and has two large
boxed posts with moulded caps. Most of the windows have been
replaced with aluminum sash, and a carport has been added to
the northwest corner of the house, below the tinish floor
elevation and in front of the original garage. These
alterations are considered to have been ot minor impact to
the building and appear to be reversible. The house taces
west on Znd street. A large rock outcrop is located tc the
southwest of the house.

33 ADDRESS: 154 N. 2Znd Street
CLASSIF1CATION: Secondary Signiticant

OWNER: George % Betty Covell, 134 N. 2nd, S5t Helens 0OR 97051
ASSESSDR MAF: 513433 TAX LOT: 11700

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 6; pt of 7 BLOCK: 16
YEAR BUILT: 1924 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Minor-Moderate USE: HResidence

DESCRIPTION: The one story building is rectangular in form and
has a gable roof with the eave end towards the street. A
later gable addition has been added to the south side of the
structure. The barge bocards have ornamentaly cut ends. and
there is stick work in all the gable ends as well as
brackets. The house is sided with horizontal. beveled tongue
and groove siding and below the drip cap and water table
clapboards. The windows are one over one double- hung wood
sash. The alterations do not appear to have adverﬂ)gy
affected the house. A garage entrance has been cut into the
foundation at the northwest corner,. and aluminum storm
windows have been added. The house is sited on a rocky site,
with a large rock outcrop in its back yard. The rear of the
house overlooks the Golumbia River and the front faces west
cn Ind street.
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34 ADDRESS: 144 N. Znd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Ben % Ina Fearl Nix, 144 N. 2nd, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAP: S13433 TAX LOT: 11800
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 5,18 BLOCK: 16
YEAR BUILT: 1908 STYLE: American Foursquare

ALTERATIONS: Minor-Moderate USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The one-story building is rectangular in shape and
has a hipped rcof. It has shiplap siding and boxed eaves. The
windows are che over one doukle-hung sash and thereis a bay
window on the southern side of the house. The reentrant porch
extends across the entire front of the building and has a
wrought iron railing and two wrought iron posts. The
foundation has been covered over with plywcod to appear as
though it is tongue and groove, A one-car detached garage
with flat roof is sited at the front northwestern corner ot
the site. The building appears intact. Modifications to 1its
porch and foundation appear to be reversible. The house taces
west on 2nd street.

35 ADDRESS: 134 N. 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signitficant
OWNER: Dora Seawright, Rt 1 Box 148-9, Scappoose OR 97056

ASSESSOR MAF: 513433 TAX LOT: 11900

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 4,9; pt of 3,20 BLOCK: 16
YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: American Foursquare
ALTERAT IONS: Minimal Y 0 USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The two story building has a truncated hip root
with boxed eaves and is rectangular in plan with a two-story
addition across the rear. It is sided with horizontal,
beveled tongue and groove siding, and has one over one
double-hung sash windows. The reentrant porch located at the
southwest corner of the tirst story is detailed with a simple
classical pilasters. The structure has been only minimally
changed over the years. The front porch is missing its
original post, railing and stairs, and a new screen of wood
and glass has been added. The foundation has also been
covered over with shingles. These changes seem to be of
minimal impact and easily reversible. The house faces west on
Znd street.
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36 ADDRESS: N. 2nd Street

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

OWNER: William Walden Dillard et al, 124 N. Znd, 5t Helens UR 97051
ASSESSOR MAR: 513433 TAX LOT: 12000

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Zi; pt of &, 20 BLOCK: 16

USE: Vacant Lot

DESCRIPTION: This property has panhandle access to Znd street
but is sited behind the residence at 124 N Znd street. The
site is east facing and overlcoks the Columbia River.

37 ADDRESS: 124 N. 2Znd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signitficant
OWNER: MWilliam Walden Dillard et al, 124 N. Znd, St Helens OR %7051

ASSESSOR MAF: 513433 TAX LOT: 12100

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 2 BLOCK: 16
YEAR BUILT: 1922 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: FResidence

DESCRIPTION: The William Walden Dillard House is a one and a
half story building, "T* shaped in form with a gable roof
with its eave end toward the street. It has a symmetrical
three-bay front and irregular side fenestration. The first
story is sided with wide clapboards and the second story with
narrow ones. The windows are one over one double-hung wood
sash and are paired on the front. The front door has fifteen
lights and has ten light side lights. The one story gable
roof porch has two truncated obelisk posts and heavy beams
and cross bracing in the gable end. The porch has a rail of
vertical boards with a top and bottom cap. A large shed
dormer, with five. two over one double-hung wood sash
windows, extends across the front facade at the second story
level. The gable ends have heavy brackets. An attached.
enclosed sun porch to the east overlooks the Columbia River.
No substantive changes were noted. The Dillard House was
constructed by Hollie Gronkite. It faces west on Znd street.
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38 ADDRESS: 170 Columbia Boulevard
CLASSIFICATION: Frimary Significant
DWNER: Myrtle Watters, 454 Gray Clift Dr, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAFP: 313433 TAX LOT: 12200

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 1, pt of 2 BLOCK: 16
YEAR BUILT: 1908 STYLE: @Gueen Anne
ALTERATIONS: Miner - USE: HResidence % Retail

DESCRIPTION: This one and one halt story residence has
architecural characteristics of the primary building period.
It is rectangular in plan with a steeply pitched gable root
covered with corrugated metal which is pierced by a brick
chimney. Thé building is clad with shiplap siding, and a four
foot high board skirting covers the foundation. The windows
are one cver one double-hung sash, paired on both stories and
casements of three lights. A "U" shaped porch with & hip roof
surrounds the scuth, east and west elevations. 1t is
embelished with turned. decorative posts and a wood slat
railing. Additions on the north and east facades appear to
have been made some time ago and are compatible with the
original structure. Storage buildings are east otf the
residence which is in fair condition and could easily be
restored.

29 ADDRESS: 130 Columbia kKoulevard
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Myrtle Watter, 454 bGrey Clitt Dr, &t Helens UR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 513433 TAX LOT: 12200

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft of 22 BLOCK: 16
YEAR BUILT: 1912 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION®* The former parsonage for the Plymouth
Congregational Church is a one story, rectangular¥y- shaped
building with an asymmetrical three-bay front. It has a
medium to steeply pitched hip root, *California* clapboard
siding, and below the drip cap and water table vertical board
and batten sheathing on the foundation. The front porch at
thhe southeast corner of the house has an attached gable root
supported by purlins and two truncated okelisk posts. The
porch railing is of vertical boards with a top and bottom
cap. The only notable change to the structure is that the
front door has been replaced. The fcrmer parscnage taces
south onto Golumbia Boulevard. The parsonage was constructed
in 191% when the church was reorganized.
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40 ADDRESS: 110 Columbia Boulevard

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

OWNER: David and Georgine Williamson, Box 6511, 5t Helens UR Y70ul
ASSESSOR MAF: 5134235 Tax LOT: 12400

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 2% BLOCK: 16

USE: Vacant Lot

DESCRIFTION: The property which fronts on Celumbia Blvd has
remnants ot the toundation of the former Flymouth
Congregational Church. erected in 1837. The site tor the
church was donated by Mrs Hannah Tyszkiewicz.

41 ADDRESS: 105 &, 1st Street
CLASSIF1CATION: Frimary Significant
OWNER: Stanley % Evelyn Hopkins, 103 5. 1st, 5t Helens UR 97031

ASGESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 3100

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Fart of 10, 11, 12, 13 BLOCK: 17
YEAR BUILT: 1905 S5TyLE: Dutch Colonial

ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: FResidence

DESCRIPTION: The Gray House is a one and one halt story
structure, irregqular in plan with a bellcast gambrel roor. 1t
has shingle siding on the upper story. with shiplap below,.
Original windows remain, on2 over one double-hung sacsh. The
porch on the east facade has Tuscan columns, pilasters, and
jigsaw cut, decorative balusters., Additions include hip roof
dormers on the north and south facades and a one story
attachment to the west. This structure is in gocod condition
and has few alterations.

42 ADDRESS: 115 8, 1st Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Siginificant
OWNER: James % Avis Chisum, 115 5. 1st, St Helens OR 97041

ASSESSOR MAFP: 41321 TAX LOT: 3200

PLAT: St., Helens LOT: Fart of 10, 13 BLOCK: 17
YEAR BUILT: 1926 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The Orin Shepard House is cne of the tew stucco
residences within the district. It is a ocne story building,
rectangular in plan, three bays%fnd covered with a jerkinhead
roof. It has weod one over one double-hung sash windows and
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sidelights at the entry dcor. A pedimented entry porch
dominates the east tacade; the porch columms are stuccoed
with wooden caps. A side entry was added at a later date. rew
changes have nccurred to the building over the vears.

Captain Orin Shepard the tormer owner ot the residence. was a
skipper on the "America” for 12 years. Soon thereatter, 1In
1913, he joined his brother Frank in management ot a motor
tus company- the first between Portland and St Helens.
Captain Shepard alsc founded the Shepard Towing Gompany.
which he owned until his death. He livad 1n this residence on
1st street with his wife Lillian E. Shepard. (lsbister Family
Scraptook: Newspaper clipping)

47 ADDRESS: 135 8. lst Street
CLASSIFICATION: Frimary Significant
OWNER: William Walden Dillard, 124 N. Znd, St Helens OR v7031

ASSESSOR MAP: 41371 TAX LOT: 6300

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: 8, Y, 14, 15 BLOCKE: 17
YEAR BUILT: 1895 STYLE: bSimplitied ltalianate
ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: HResidence

DESCRIPTION: The Dillard House is one ctory. rectangular in
plan, and, three bays wide. The residence 1s sided with
shiplap and finished with corner boards. The toundation 1s
covered with plywood and vertical boards. Paired one over one
double-hung sash windows are seen on either side ot the
entry. The front posts have been replaced with wrought iron
posts and railings. An attachment has been added to the north
facade and an observatory window has been added to the root
at the peak of the hip. The original door has alsoc been
replaced. The residence faces east on a bluff overlooking the
GColumbia River.

This residence is associated with Susie B. and William
Barclay Dillard. William Dillard was a well known attorney in
St Helens. He was a spokesman tor St Helens during the
controversy to reroute the highway from Portland through
Houlton (West St Helens) to the ceoast. Mrs Susie Dillard
lived in St Helens with her two children Walden W. and J.
Mason long after her husband died in 18Z7. She was the
librarian tor St Helens from 19Z1-1936, and in 1937 was
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appointed as the city’s postmistress. She retired from the
postoffice 15 years later. In 18954 Mre Dillard was named
*Woman of Achievement® by the American Association ot
Universiy Women. (St Helens Sentinel-Mist. Jubilee Edition,
1888-1929, and lsbister Family Scrapbock news clippings.)

44 ADDRESS: 145 5. lst Street
CLASSIFICAT1ON: Frimary Significant
OWNER: Frances Craver, 145 S 1st, 5t Helens UK 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 3300

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 16, pt of 7 BLOCK: 1/

YEAR BUILT: 1905 51YLE: Crattsman, Llassical Detailing
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: HResidence

DESCRIPTION® The Clift-Ross House is two stories. rectangular
in plan. and two bays wide. It has a hip root. and
decorativie detailing along the tascia. lt has horizontal
beveled siding and & concrete foundation. The windows are one
over one double-hung sash, paired and in bays ot three. There
is a recessed ent.ry on the east facade with simple pilasters
and two doors7/multxp¢ned with sidelights and leaded glass
transoms. The door facing east was probably the original
entrance. A three sided bay is on the south elevation. A
concrete and wooden garage is located in back of the house,
to the west. Photographs of this residence show it with a
tower that was sxtuated on tofp ot the second story projection
to the east. The porch/c-n the north and it appears that &=t scrors of /7 boie
tacades hkas been encxosed, and the cecond entry - was 20050,

: ¥. The house is in good condition and

is sntuated on an irregular lot facing east toward the

Columbia River. The first owner of this residence was Dr.

Henry Clift, an early physician in St. Helens, however, it is

usually associated with Dr. L.G. Ross, the second owner.

Doctor Levi Gilbert Ross and Vena E. Shatfer were married in
1911 and had one child, John Morse Ross. Dr. Ross arrived in
St Helens in 1910 and practiced as the Gounty Health officer
and as a physician in St Helens for 37 years. He was the
longest serving county health officer in the state of Oregon,
although he retired from that position at age 59. He founded
St Helens General Hospital in 1925. He was also a director of
the Columbia Gounty Bank, which his tather. William Ross
helped orgnize. Dr. L.G. Ross. a leading citizen of St.
Helens,died 14 May 1937, ( St. Helens Sentinel Mist. A
Frogress Report 1833-49)
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45 ADDRESS: 155 S. lst Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant .

OWNER: Charlotte Sigler, 159 S. 1st, 5t Helens Uk Y/031
ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TRX LOT: 6100

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: &6, 7: pt of 18 ELOCE: 17/
YEAR BUILT: 1915 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: HKesidence

DESCRIPTION: The Frank George house 15 a one and a halt story
rectangular shaped building with an irregqular three-bay
front. The gable root 1c oriented with the eave end toward
the street and a gabled dormer with two pairs of doutble leat
doors with very narrow panes is centered on the front tacade.
The gable ends are detailed with stickwork and with purlins.
It is sided with horizontal clapboards above the water table
and drip cap. and a stucco wash below. The original windows
were one over one double-hung wood sash, but have been
moditied at the sothern end ot the front tacade. A two story
front porch is centered and extends across across halt ot the
front facade. A solid shingle rail with a curved edge and
supported by fancy cut ratters and beams provides a sitting
porch at the second story. It 1s supported by three truncated
obelisk posts which rest on a csolid clapboard rail at the
first story. The only moditication ot any note to the
building is the aluminum sash windows which have repiaced the
original one over one double-hung sash wood windows on the
south end of the front facade. The house rtaces east and
overlooks the Columbia River.

46 ADDRESS: 167 S. 1st Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Robert R. & Hazel Vagt, 167 S. 1st, St Helens UR %7031

ASSESSOR MAP: 41321 TAX LOT: 3400

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 18, 1Y BLOCK: 17
YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Crattsman
ALTERATIONS:  Moderate USE: Residence

SHery
DESGCRIPTION: The Dart House is a one and one halt/Craftsman
style,wood frame residence, rectangular in plan and two bays
wide. It has a hip roof with exposed ratters and hip root
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dormers. The porch acoss the east facade has boxed posts; the
entry door has side lights. Windows are one over one
double-hung sash and diamond paned casement. The porch and
house have a concrete toundation. The house 1s sited on a
steep lot on the east side ot 1st street. A garage has been
added to the south facade.

This house was first occupied by James Dart, who served as
county judge from 1806-1912. Dart was previously in the mill
business with Muckle. He alsc served as Columbia county
sherift and as mayor ot St Helens. (Columbia Gounty
HistorZes, X1I, Pp. 48-50)

47 ADDRESS: 173 5. 1st Sreeet

CLASSIFICATION: trimary Signiticant

OWNER: J. & M. Harris, K.W. Springer, 7925 S.E. Lake, Millwaukie OR %7222
ASSESSOR MAF: 4132 TAX LOT: 3500

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of %,4,19,20 BLOCK: 17

YEARR BUILT: 1886 STYLE: Victorian w/Gothic detailing
ALTERATIONS: Mcderate USE: Apartments

DESCRIPTION: The Samuel] Miles House is a two and a half story
irregularly shaped structure with an irregular three bay
front. It has a jerkinhead roof with boxed eaves. The eave
end is oriented towards the street. Two partial hexagonal
hipped roofs cover the two story canted bay windows that
protrude from its front facade. A two-story bay window with
attached roof is centered under the rake end on the south
facade. The windows are one over one double-hung wood sash. A
one story wrap around veranda extends across the east. south
and west sides of the structure. It has an irregularly shaped
hip roof which protrudes in Fefétienshssdd the bay windows.

It is supported by fancy cut ornamental stick brackets and
solid chamfered posts. The tollowing alterations have been
made to the building® it has been resided with tire retardant
shingles; two dormer windows have been added to the east side
of the roof; the window and door trim appear to have been
replaceds and a later chimney has been added to the north
end. These alterations appear to be reversible.

Samuel Miles, an early resident ot St Helens, was deputy
sheriff in 1860 and was elected sheritt in 186Z. He was the
second sheriff of Columbia County.
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48 ADDRESS: 187 5 1st Street

CLASSIF1CATION: Secondary Signiticant
. OWNER: Philip L Hickey Jr, PO Box 1031, St Helens OR 97051
ASSESSOR MAP: 4132 TAX LOT: 3600
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 2,2%,4,20,21 BLOCK: 17
YEAR BUILT: BEF /93°s STYLE: C(Commercial

ALTERATIONS: ExtamsRre Vooc<c7g USE: Storage

DESCGRIPTION:® The St Helens Ice and Beverage Co. is a one story
building, three bays wide. It has a flat roof, concrete
foundation and a stucco finish that has the appearance ot cut
stone. The front, east side entry has wooden double doors
which operate on rolling hardware. A wood canopy covers an
additional door on the east facade. Two square projecting
bays on the east facade have wooden sash windows ot four and
eight lights. The buildng was originally a wood sided
structure which was “modernized® with stucco. probably in the
1930°’s. The windows on the north facade need repair as do the
large doors.

The Ice and Beverage Go. Building started as a dairy retail
outlet in 192Z3. In 1925 it was purchased by G.B. Greenburg
who changed the business to an ice and beverage company. A
1949 special edition of the St Helens Sentinel-Mist reported
the plant as “the most modern in the northwest. extending
service over all of Golumbia county and parts ot Multnomah
and Clatsop counties." The plant produced two tons ot ice
daily and manufactured soft drinks ‘*including Dream Orange.
Red Rock Gola, Twang Root Beer, and the entire line ot Canada
Dry Beverages.® (p.43)

49 ADDRESS: 100 St Helens Street
CLASSIFICATION;: Non—-Compatible Nen-Contributing
OWNER: Ben & Kellaug Chamberlain, 100 St Helens, St Helens OR %7051

ASSESSOR MAP: 41321 TAX LOT: 3700

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 22 BLOCK: 17
YEAR BUILT: 1971 STYLE: Commercial Strip
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Restaurant

DESCRIPTION: The building is a one-story rectangular structure
with flat roof and wide overhanging eave. It is constructed
of concrete block and has aluminum sash pictre windows. The
entare trorand side yard ot the site has been asphalted.
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S0 ADDRESS: 189 S 1st Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-Contributing
OWNER: James H Clawson, FO Box 247, St Helens COR Y7051
ASSESSOR MAF: 4132 TAX LOT: 5400
FLAT: St. Helens LOT: Part of 1,22 BLOCK: 17
YEAR BUILT: 1920 STYLE: T (ovmercind
ALTERATIONS: Extensive USE: Residence % Commercial

DESCRIPTION: The former S.G. Morton Building is twao stories,
rectangular in plan, two bays wide, with a flat recof. stucco
siding, and 3 concrete basement. 1t has aluminum sash sliders
in the secand story and a fixed glass window on the east
facade ot the tirst story. Two metal doors are on the south
facade. This building originally occupied the jot directly to
the east, where Kelly’s Kitchen is now located. 1t housed the
Sentinel Mist until about 1939 when it was moved and
extensively altered trom its 13Z3 appearance which had eight
over one double-hung sash, two entries on the south with
transoms, and paired modillions at the cornice. None ot these
details remain. (Photo lcaned by Joseph Bennett)

951 ADDRESS: Nor theast cq‘ﬁer of 2nd % St Helens Streets
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

OWNER: James H. Clawson, 150 St Helens, St Helens OR 97051
ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 5500

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft of 1 BLDCK: 17
USE: Yard & Driveway

52 ADDRESS: 190 S. 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Emanuel % Hazel Sivers, Rt 4 Box 4112, Warren 0OR 97053

ASSESSOR MAP: 41321 TAX LOT: 5600
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 2 BLOCK: 17
YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Craftsman

ALTERATIONS: Minor-Moderate USE: HResidence

DESCRIPTION: The building is a one story rectangular strucire
with irregular three-bay front. It has a hip roct with boxed
eaves. It is sided with horizontal, beaded tongue and groove
and below the drip cap and water table vertical. beaded
tongue and groove siding. The windows are on2 over one
double-hung wood sash. The front porch extends across the
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entire front facade ot the building and has an attached hip
roof. It is supported by four turned posts. The structure has
been altered in the tollowing ways®* the front and rear porch
rails have been replaced, plywood sheathing has been put on
the porch foundation, one aluminum window has been added to
the rear of the south side, and the rootf has bteen sheathed
with shakes. The building appears to have been constructed in
conjunction with 176 & 184 S Znd Street (53 & 54) which are
similar in design and detailing.

53 ADDRESS: 184 S 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Katherine & Barry Settle, 33411 Blaha Road, Warren OR 97033

ASSESSOR MAF: 4132 TAX LOT: 35700

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 2, 3 ERLOCK: 17
YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Crattsman
ALTERQTIUNS:/ Moderate USE: HKesidence

DE{SCRIfPTION This is a small. one story residence which is
Srsre in plan, whieh is three irregular bays wide. 1t has a
hip rocof, exterior brick chimney. beaded tongue and groove
siding and a three toot high foundation sheathed with
vartical boards. Double-hung sash windows are intact and the
main entry door on the west facade has one light. The front
porch has been moditied® boxed posts have replaced the
original posts; tbh/e/poxch railing has been replaced with a
two foot high =
S e o Aps S Do s”,vs(f < e sy ),

54 ADDRESS: 176 S. 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Donald Woshnak, 374 N. 6th Street, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAP: 41321 TAX LOT: 5800
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt 3,4 BLOCK: 17
YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Crattsman

ALTERATIONS: Minor-Moderate USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The building is a one story rectangular shaped
structure with an irregular three-bay tfront. It has a hipped
roof with boxed eaves and horizontal. beaded tongue and
groove siding. Below the drip cap and water table vertical
patterned plywood partially covers a poured concrete
foundation. The windows are one over one double-hung wood
sash. The front porch with attached hipped roof extends
across the front of the building and is supported by four
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turned posts. The following alterations have been made to the
building: the tfoundation has been sheathed with plywood, the
porch railing and handrails have been replaced. one window
hac been replaced with a french door and the tront docor has
been replaced. These alterations appear reversible. The
structure is similar in design to 184 & 180 S Znd Street (5%

& §3) to its south.

59 ADDRESS: 172 §. 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-Contributing
OQWNER: Charlotte R. Jensen, 155 8. lst, St Helens UK Y7031

ASSESSOR MAF: 4132 TAX LOT: 5900
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft of 4 BLOCK: 17
YEAR BUILT: 1927 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Masgmr cr7evs/ic USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: This one story bungalow is rectangular in plan,
three bays wide, with a gatle roof and a concrete foundation.
The siding which has bteen altered 1I1s now aluminum.
Fenestration is regular with fixed windows on the west
facade. The gable roofed porch has boxed posts and decorative
brackets. New steps and a wrought iron rail lead to the
entry.

56 ADDRESS: 170 8. 2Znd Street

CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-Contributing

OWNER: Gary & Lilla Wallace, 164 §. Znd, St Helens OR 97051
ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 6000

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 5 BLOCK: 17

YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Extensive USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The building is one and a halt stories and
rectangular in plan. It has a gable roof with the gable end
towards the street and is supported by purlins on the rake
ends. It has clapbkoard siding and belocw the drip cap and
water table vertical tongue and groove siding. The windows,
almost all of which have been modified. appear originally to
have been wide one over one double-hung wood sash. The
attached gable roof porch which is located on the south end
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of the front tacade also appears to have been moditied. Shed
dormers have also been added to the north and south sides ot
the rcof. 1t the building were restored, it would be
classified as Secondary Significant.

57 ADDRESS: 144 S. 1st Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Mary &% Durbin Teter, 274 5 16th, St Helens OR 97031

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 6200

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 7 BLOCK: 17
YEAR BUILT: 192 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

" DESCRIPTION: The one story bungalow is rectangular in plan and
three bays wide. It has a low pitched gable roof with exposed
ratters. It is clad with ‘"Calitornia" clapboard siding and
vertical boards over the foundation. Windows are one over one
double-hung wood sash and the entry door on the west facade
has one light. The gabled roaot porch has boxed posts and an
unpainted wooden railing. The porch railing has been
replaced, and the doors to basement altered.

a8 ADDRESS: 114 § 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Daniel & Janet Yokum, 114 5 2nd, St Helens OR 970351

ASSESSOR MAFP: 41321 TAX LOT: 6400
PLAT: St. Helens ' LOT: Pt of 10 BLOCK: 17
YEAR BUILT: 1920 STYLE: Vernacular

ALTERATIONS: Moderste 7. ... USBE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: This is a one and one half story wood frame
structure, rectangular in plan, and three bays wide. It has a
gable roof with boxed eaves. shiplap siding and vertical
boards covering the foundation. The windows are one over one
double-hung wood sash. paired in the upper story. A hip roof
porch with wood posts is attached to the west facade. Wooden
shutters are seen on all facades. Few alterations have been
mades the original porch posts have been replaced and a metal
screen door has been added to the entry.
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59 ADDRESS: 171 Columbia Boulevard
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-Contributinag
OWNER: Norman & Elizabeth Lillebo,

171 Columbia Rlvd, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 6500

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 10, 11 BLOCE: L7
YERR BUILT: 1905 STYLE: Gueen Anne Victorian
ALTERATIONS: Extensive USE: Residence

DESCRIFPTION: The Southard House is a one and a halt story
irregularly shaped building with a c¢ross gable roof. The
eaves are boxed and return on the rake end. The windows are
one over one double-hung wood sash. On the west side there is
a square bay window with a hipped roof and on the second
story a three sided bow window. The front porch extends
across the front of the house and has an attached hip root.
It 1s supported by four truncated obelisk posts which sit on
a solid rail. The house has been extensively altered. It has
been completely resided with aluminim siding and the original
window trim has been removed. A number of additions have been
added to the rear facade. Although the alterations are
considered to be extensive, restoration ot the structure to
its original condition appears possible. If the structure
were restored it would be classitied as a Primary Significant
structure because its architectural style is representative
of the primary building period in St. Helens.

Harry J. Southard, who is associated with the house, maoved ta
St Helens in 1912. He was active in city affairs and held a
number of public offices, including water commissioner,
councilman, and city marshall.

60-A ADDRESS: 201 S 1st and 101 St Helens Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Melvin & Dorothy Taylor, PO Box 203, 5t Helens OR 97041

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 3800

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 12 PRLOCK: 18

YEAR BUILT: 1927 STYLE: Commerc1a1
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Grocery Story & Office

DESCRIPTION: The H. W. H. Adams Grocery is a one story
rectangular structure with a one-bay tront. It has a tlat
roof with a parapet wall/wath & lapping tiles de=t&rl. 1t is
sided with stucco. The central entrance is recessed between
twe store-front windows, topped by twelve mezzanine windows
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with obscure glass. lridescent black and small yellow glazed
tiles decorate the base of the store front windows. The
entrance has double leaf glass doors with a single transom
light above. The store front window extends around the corner
one bay on St Helens Street, tfollowed by five ten-light,
fixed wood sash windows and two separate store-fronts at the
western end of the north facade. These store-fronts are
detailed in a similar fashicn to the store-front on 1ist
street. Only the signage and two of the fixed 10-light
windows appear to have been altered over the years. Even the
original wood canopy suspended from the parapet remains
intact. The building housed the Adams Grocery which was
opened in 1927 by H.W.H. (Dewey) Adams.

60-R ADDRESS: 203 & 203 5. 1st

CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-Contributing

OWNER: Melvin & Dorothy Taylor, FO Box 2035, St Helens OR 97051
ASSESSOR MAP: 41321 TAX LOT: 3800

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 12 BLOCEK: 18

YEAR BUILT: Unknown STYLE: Unknown

ALTERATIUNS: Extensive USE: Office & Retail

DESGRIPTION: The building is a two story rectangular structure
with a two-bay front. It is sided with shiplap and v-joint
tongue and groove.lts windows are generally one over one
double-hung wood sash. I{ has been extensively altered over
the years and the front facade ot the first story has been
extended to the street edge. It appears that the building is
constructed from remnants of the Methodist Ghurch which was
built at the corner of 1st and St Helens streets before 1873.

It was damaged by a fire in March 1984 and is currently
vacant. ‘
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61 ADDRESS: 215 S. lst Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: K OF P, Avon Lodge #6462, 235 &5 1st, St Helens UR Y7051

ASSESS0OR MAF: 4132 TAX LOT: 3901

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 135 BLOCK: 14

YEAR BUILT: 1927 STYLE: Commercial

ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: kKnights of rythias Hall % Commercial

DESCRIPTION® The Knights of Pythias Lodge 1s a two story
building, two bays wide with a flat rooctf over the tiront
portion of the buildng and a truncated hip in the rear. The
kuilding is constructed of hollow painted tile with a brick
face. The windows are double hung sash above and tixed glass
telow. The entry bay is recessed on the east facade. The
coriginal double doors and transom remain. Bands ot decorative
rowlock and soldiér brick coursing are seen above the windows
and at the corners of the building, Glazed tile is below the
fixed storefront window bays. Minor alterations have occurred
to the building® a metal sash swinging door has replaced the
criginal, the first floor windows are boarded up and the hip
root at the rear of the building lcoks to be a later
addition.

The Knights ot Pythias Hall was dedicated May Z6- 1917, with
Willard Marks, Grand Chancellor, ofticiating. 1t was designed
byJ.E. Doughty and constructed by G.E. LaSalle. The cost ot
the hall was £30,000. The Avon Lodge #62, Knights of Pythias
was organized in 1894 with twenty-six charter members. (5t
Helens Sentinel-Mist, Jubilee Edition, June 23, 1939, p 41)
The first floor of the building was occupied by the J.GC.
Penney company until the late 1960’s when it moved to West St
Helens.

b2 ADDRESS: (221 & 225) S. 1st Street

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

OWNER: K of P, Avon Lodge # 62, 235 § 1st, St Helens DR 97051
ASSESSOR MAP: 41321 TAX LOT: 4000

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 14 BLOCK: 18

USE: fFarking Lot
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63 ADDRESS: 235 §. 1st Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant

OWNER: St Helens Lodge #32, A.F.&% A.M., % Mel Johnson, Rt Z, Box 71,
Scappoose UR Y7056

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 4100

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 15 BLOCK: 18

YEAR BUILT: 1913 STYLE: C(lassical Revival
ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: Masonic Lodge % Retail

DESCRIFPTION: The St Helens Masonic Lodge is a two story
rectangular shaped building with a symmetrical two-bay front.
It has a flat roof with a parapet along its front facade on
ist street. 1t is sided with rough and smooth stucco. The
btays are defined by piers detailed as paired pilasters at the
second story and separated by a string course from the
parapet. The smooth band of stucco across the parapet used to
te detailed with a projecting hip roof supported by brackets.
The original one over one double-hung, paired. wood sash
windows at the second story level were topped with star
transoms. The double-hung wood sash has been replaced with
aluminum sacsh windows. The first story store fronts have been
extensively altered over the years. however, Pphotogxoe
documentation exists which could aid in their restoration.
The rear and side facades of the building have been covered
cver with horizontal aluminum siding to eliminate water
damage that was occurring on the interior of the building.

The lodge rooms, reception and banquet halls at the second
story have only minimally been altered over the years. In the
early 1930°s the lodge room was decorated with murals and
freehand decoration. The murals which adorn the walls are
symbolic representations ot stories from the Bible. The
central dome in the ceiling has been trimmed with gold and
painted with constellations of stars on a blue background.
The name of the artist is unknown. but according to older
members of the lodge, was just someone passing through town
who needed work during the depression.
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On 17 May 181%, the St Helens Masonic Lodge held a meeting at
which the following motions were made and carried concerning
construction of a new lodge hall* that the cost of the
building not exceed $1Z,000, that it be constructed out of
natural stone or reinforced concrete, and that the front ot
the building be of pressed brick, concrete or native stone.
Finally. it was moved and carried that the building be
constructed with titty-twc feet ot trontage and not to exceed
ninety feet in length, and that the plans ot architect Ernest
Kronen be accepted, subject to alterations by the lodge
trustees. J.M. Tillman was selected as contractor. (History

of the 5t Helens Lodge No. 3%, A.F.& A.M., 1860-1830, James
Minor) “Construction work on the new home was begun early in
1813 and the magniticent structure was dedicated to masonry
on Saturday evening. October 18, 1813, and this day was a
red-letter day in the history ot the St. Helens Lodge # 3%.
The sclemn and impressive dedication service took pilace in
the main lodge room, Judge J.C. Moreland acting as grand
master and Judge F.A. Mcoore, grand #&enior warden: Judge
Thomas A. McBride, #&as deputy grand master. and J.F.
Robinson, as grand secretary. ...Addresses were alsc made by
Judges F.A. Moore and T.A. McBride ot the supreme bench. who
were 2arly members of the lodge and who still retain their
membership... The present quarters ot the lodge are
considered the finest of any of the small cities of Oregon
and would do credit to any c.xt in the state. The building..

: = - ompE = st —amwd-1s an ornament to the
town. (St Helens Mlst, Spemal Edltxon, September 15, 1916)




FHR-8-300 (V1-78)

United States Department of the Interior
Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service

National Register of Historic Places
Inventory—Nomination Form

Continuation sheet item number 7

64 ADDRESS:  245-257 S. 1st Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Ben % Bonnie Sue Sharp, Rt | Box 1718, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOY: 4301

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft of 16,17 BLOCK: 18
YEAR BUILT: 1919 STYLE: Brick Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: Commercial

DESGRIPTION®: The Rutherford Building is a3 one story commercial
structure, rectangular in plan and six bays wide. It is
constructed of hollow tile and stucco with a brick veneeer on
the east facade. It has a flat roof with a brick parapet ot
rowlock and and soldier coursing and a concrete foundation.
The six storeironts on the east facade have fixed windows and
recessed entries. Brick piers divide the bays. plywood siding
has been added to the east tacade, covering the uprer story
windows. The transom windows on some ot the storefronts have
been filled in. A break in the parapet divides the northern.
clder section of the building from the southern portion. This
tuilding appears on the 1921 Sandborn Fire Insurance Go. maps
cf St Helens as being used for a grocery, meat market,
jeweler, candy shop, an oftice. and the entrance to the
Liberty Theater (later a bowling alley) behind the building.

This building was constructed by Laud Kutherford. who moved
to St Helens in 1810. He was secretary/treasurer of the
Columbia Gounty Abstract Company from 1910-1918. A year later
he built this structure, the first brick building sn 1ist
street. Mr Kutherford entersd the real estate and loan
business in 1918 and waec a real estate broker atter 1828.
(Columbia County History.)

&5 ADDRESS: ist Street

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

OWNEH: Columbia County, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAP: 41321 TAX LOT: 4300

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 6,17 ELOCK: 18
USE: Alley

DESCRIPTION: The concrete alley serves as a pedestrian and
service alley between 1st and 2nd streets.



FHA-3-300 (11-78)

United States Department of the Interior
Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service

National Register of Historic Places
Inventory—Nomination Form

Continuation sheet Item number

b6 ADDRESS: 261, 263 5. lst Street
CLASSIF1CATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Sybel E. Bemis, FO Box 61, St Helens OR 97031

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 4400

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft of 18 BLOCK: 18
YEAR BUILT: 1921 STYLE: Brick Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: Printing Shop

DESCRIPTION: This commercial building is one story, rectangular
in plan. amd two irregular bays wide, and has a tlat rootf. It
is constructed of hollow tile with a beige brick veneer which
has been painted. It has a concrete foundation. Brick Ppiers
divide the bays. The fixed storefront windows have metal sash
and one light each and the wooden entry doofs with one light
and a transom are recessed. Recessed panels for signage are
on the parapet between the brick piers. Alterations include
plywood siding over the mezzanine windows and the painted
brick.

67 ADDRESS: 271, 281, 2BS 5. 1st Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significance
OWNER: Donald Kalberer, FO Box 888, Scappoose OR 97056

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 4701

FLAT: 5t. Helens LOT: 33 Pt of 1,2.4,19,20,21,22
BLOCK: 18

YEAR BUILT: 1923 STYLE: Commercial

ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Retail & Offices

DESCRIPTION: The Gilby Mctor Gempany Building is a one story
*L" shaped building with a four-bay front. The building has a
flat rocf with a parapet wall along 1st street and is
constructed of poured concrete. The parapet is detailed with
red brick dentiles at ite upper edge. recessed panels for
signage, and small square red brick panels at the top of each
pier. The piers which define the bays, have a string course
of red brick at their top and a cant sided wall lantern at
the mezzanine window level. The store fronts in the three
southerly bays are detailed with mezzanine windows along the
top and a central doorway flanked by fixed wood sash store-
front windows. The mezzanine windows have twelve lights with
obscure glass. The two bays to the south have recessed doors.
The most northerly bay is somewhat smaller than the others
and provides the entrance to the garage. The tront tfacade of
the building is finished with stucco.
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The building was constructed in 1923 for the Gilby Motor Go.
Originally the rear of the building was a garage with an 835
car capacity and an area for repair, and the two storeifronts
housed a showroom. The most southerly bay was a separate
storefront which housed a variaety store.

68 ADDRESS: S. 2nd Street

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

OWNER: HRobert & Melita lsrael, 280 S, 1st, S5t Helens OR 97051
ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 4702

FPLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 20 BLUOCK: 18

USE: Alley

DESCRIPTION: The property is a paved pedestrian and service
alley, approximately sixty-six feet long. betwen the tormer
Gilby Motor Company and the McGCormick Building.

&9 ADDRESS: 289-299 S. ist Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signitficant
OWNER: Robert & Melita Israel, 280 S. 1st, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAP: 41321 TAX LOT: 4500

PLAT: 5t. Helens LOT: FPart of 21, 22 BLOCK: 18
YEAR BUILT: 1921 STYLE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Retail & Offices

DESCRIPTION: The McGormick Building is a two story rectangular
structure with a five-bay front. It has a flat roof with a
parapet wall along lst and Gowlitz which is faced with stucco
and has no detailing. The building is faced with brown.
slightly mottled brick in a regular bond with row lock
courses at the base of the building and as string courses
above the first and second stories. The rear facades ot the
building are stuccoed. The bays are separated by piers and
detailed identically except for the central entrance bay. At
the second story level they have paired six over one
double-hung windows and at the first story level, storefronts
with a central recessed doorway with double leaf doors with
twelve light transoms above. The central bay has a single
double-hung window. tflanked by paired double hung windows at
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the second story and at the first story an entrance to the
second story tflanked by smaller storefronts with oft center
entrances, The Cowlitz facade of the building has 1rregular
fenestration at the first and second story levels and fixed
storefront windows extend acrocs the two eastern bays. The
building 1s intact, except tor minor changes which have been
made to the windows on the Cowlits face o1 the building and
the parapet which %ﬁetaxi@tyﬁmﬁ% COrnice.: 7rurve

The McGormick Building was constructed for Hamlin and HNellie
McCormick. Since the time ot its construction in 1921 it has
housed a series of offices and retail shops on its first
floor. The very popular Blue Rose Room dance hall was—6n the
second floor from 1921 to 1940.

70 ADDRESS: 170 Cowlitz Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant

OWNER: Donald L. Kalberer, PO Box 888, Scappoose OR 97036
ASSESSOR MAF: 4132 TAX LOT: 4600

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 1,2 BLOCK: 18
YEAR BUILT: 1929 STYLE: Mediterranean
ALTERATIONS: HMinor USE: Apartment House

DESGRIPTION: The McGCormick Apartments are two stories,
rectangular in plan: and three bays wide. They /l}gvecna flat
roof with a hip projection, capped with cresting—ower the
southesst elevation. The building has stucco siding and a
concrete foundation. Fenestration is regular, windows include
nine over one double-hung sash. paired on the east elevation,
single and in bays of three. The front porch extends along
the south side of the building. Four entrances are covered by

the hip roof of the porch.

These apartments were owned&#Hamlin McGormick, an early St
Helens entrepreneur. In 1908, McCormick was instrumental in
the construction of the St Helens Lumber Gompany. The mill
started production in September 1808, and the population of
St Helens greatly increased with the beginning of the new
industry. The McGCormick Apartments, designed by Jesse
Doughty. were constructed to accomodate the growing
population of §t Helens.
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71 ADDRESS: 5. 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

OWNER: Donald kalberer, FO Box 888, Scappoose OR 97036

ASSESSOR MAP: 4132 TAX LOT: 4700

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft 4,19 BLOCK:

USE: Alley

18

DESGCRIPTION: The property is a pedestrian and service allay
approximately one hundred sixty feet long. It takes access
from 2nd street but does not run through to 1st street.

72 ADDRESS: 260 S. 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary Significant

OWNER: Samuel & Ida Mae Cole, 260 5 2nd, St Helens (OR 27051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 : TAX LDT: 4B0OO

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: S BLOCK: 18

YEAR BUILT: 188.: STYLE: 1ltalianate Lottage
ALTERATIONS: ~Moderate - USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION® The building is &8 one story structure,

rectangular

in shape with irregular tront fenestration. The main body ot
the house has a truncated hip rocf with a hipped root rear
addition. The eaves are boxed. The house has been covered
over with fire retardant shingles, but the window and door
trim are intact. The windows are one over one double-hung
wood sash. A one story attached porch extends across the
front of the house and has a hipped roof. 1t 1s supported by
four posts across the front and pilasters at the}wall edge

») Relgls CJ Yo

which are ornamented with cut work brackets.

the

siding, only the porch rail> hand rail and stairs appear to
have been altered. The building is sited on the cslope ot a
hillside and faces east overlooking downtown and the Golumbia
River. The rear of the structure faces 2nd street from which
it takes access. It is surrounded by an old lilac hedge and

other old fashioned plantings.
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7% ADDRESS: (240) 8. 2nd Street

. CLASSIF1CATION: Vacant
OWNER: City of St Helens, S5t Helens OR 970351
ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 4900
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 6, / BLOCK: 18

USE: Parking Lot

DESCRIPTION: This is the former site of the Henr}" Knighton
House (127) which was moved to its current location in 19388.

74 ADDRESS: Between S. 1st & 2nd Streets
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

OWNER: City of 5t Helens, 5t Helens UR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 4200

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft ot 16,17 BLUCK: 18
USE: Vacant Lot

DESCRIPTION: There are remnants of the toundation of the
Liberty Theater, later a bowling alley on the site,

75 ADDRESS: 5. 2nd Street

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

DWNER: K. of F., Avon Lodge 62, 235 § 4th, St Helens UR 97001
ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 5000

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: 8, 9 BLOCK: 1B

USE: Parking Lot

DESCRIPTION The property is a graveled parking lot with an
uneven surface.
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76 ADDRESS: (212 & 214) 8. 2nd Street

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

OWNER: k. of F., Avon Lodge #62, 235 S 4th, St Helens Ok 97031
ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: $100

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 10 BLOCK: 18

Ust: Vacant {ot

DESCRIPTION: The property is a vacant lot which 1s overgrown
with blackberry vines. It slopes to the south: east and west
and was tormerly developed with two single family dwellings.

77 ADDRELS: 171 St Helens Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-Contributing
OWNER: Lorenzo % Porfedia Vasquez, 1714 H Street, Napa CA 943589

ASSESSOR MAF: 413721 TAX LOT: 5200

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Fart of 11 BLOCK: 18

YEAR BUILT: ca 1905 STYLE: Vernacular w/Craftsman Details
ALTERATIONS: Extensive USE: Residence

DESGRIPTION: This one and one halt story residence is
characteristic of buildings constructed during the primary
period, but has had many alterations. It is °*L* shape 1n
plan, two bays wide with steeply pitched gable root and a hip
roof on the porch. Fire retardant sl')%ingle siding clads the
exterior. Fenestration is irregular;}ybne over one double-hung
sash and fixed windows., The porch has boxed posts and a#f seoc=
erctosed rail. An attachment has been made to the east tacade
and the gabled wing on the south portion of the building
includes a garage. Alterations to the building include:®
changes to siding, new windows with=sash-rameved, porch posts
replaced and rail enclesed. The residence is in poor
condition. If the structure were restored. it would be
classified as Primary Significant.
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78 ADDRESS: 161 St Helens Street

CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non-Contributing

ODWNER: Konald and Donna Shewbridge, 7311 S.W. Hunt Club Lane,
Fortland OR 97223

ASSESSOR MAP: 41321 TAX LOT: $300

FLAT: St. Helens LOY: Pt of 11 BLOCK: 18
YEAR BUILT: 1940 STYLE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Office

DESCRIPTION: The building is a one story structure with
irreqular three-bay front. It has a flat root with a parapet
wall along St Helens street and it constructed ot poured
concrete with a stucco finish. 1t has steel sash windows with
obscure glass. It faces north on St Helens street.

79 ADDRESS: 105 Cowlitz Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Myron & Kathleen Bement, 105 Cowlitz, St Helens OR 970351

ASSESSOR MAP: 41324 TAX LOT: 1800
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 10,11,12,13% BLOCK: 19
YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Bunagalow
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence
Mk = Geocs e .
DESGRIPTION: The &ecrgeMuekfe House is a two and a halt story

structure- generally rectangular in plan. with a symmetrical
three-bay front facade. It has a gable root with gable
projections on its eastern and northern tacades. A small shed
roof dormer is centered between the gable projections on its
front facade. It has clapboard siding with shingles in the
gable ends of the bays. The toundation, porch piers and stair
rails are uncoursed and roughtly cut basalt. The windows are
one over one double~-hung wood sash and eight light fixed in
the attic. The front door has beveled glass sidelights. The
front porch extends across both the lst and the Cowlitgz
street facades of the building.It has a hipped root with the
entrances on GCowlitgzand 1st streets detailed with low
pitched gable roofs. The porch is supported with eight boxed
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posts on ribbed stone plinths., The porch rail between the
masonry piers 1s ot vertical boards with a bottom and top
rail. The secondary entrance on Cowlitz street is flanked bty
stained glass windows. The exterior brick chimney con the
western rear elevation towards the north end of the building
has a metal support detailed with an "M". The calors on the
house appear to be original. 1t has black sash, and a warm
honey cream colored body and a porch ceiling of sky blue. The
garage located at the south west corner of the property 1s
contemporary with the house and appears to be 1ntact. The
house does not appear to have been aitered on the exterior in
any significant way.

The Muckle house sits at the foot of a rock chitt and faces
east onto 1st street. The yard 1s surrounded by a low poured
concrete wall and an iron railing and fence. The front
walkway i1s lined with roses and a huge dritt of snowdrops. A
large Persian walnut and magnolia are also located in the
front yard. The rear yard 1s planted with old lhilacs and
filberts.

The Muckle house was built for Charles Muckie. who with his
tkrother James, came to St Helens in 1874. They tought the
local mill property and in 1839Z timber land on the Goweeman
River in Cowlitz County. Washingten which they legged tor
many years. 'James and Charles bought several pieces ot tarm
and logging property in and around St Helens. One of the
pieces is the present Columbia Gounty fairgrounds, (now
Reichhold Chemical Go.) At one time, Charies owned six tarms.
About 1800 James Muckle moved to Portland where he locked
after the timber interests of the tirm." {(Columbia County
History. II, p. 31)

In 1304, the Muckle Brothers mill burned in the extensive
fire which destroyved most ot downtown St Helens. The brothers
did not rebuild the mill but instead. in 18908, sold the
property to the Charles R. McCormick Go. In addition to their
lumber interests, the Muckle brothers also established a
general store in the 1870°s. The Muckle Building at Strand
and Cowlitz (27) was constructed in 1909 to house this
establishment. Charles Muckle also bought the old opera house
which had been located on the Plaza and moved it to 1st and
Cowlitz streets where it was remodeled and became the St
Helens Hotel. His sister, Mary Muckle. and her husband Jacob
George. came to St Helens in 1906 and ran the hotel for
Charles for many years. The Muckle *brothers are held in the
highest esteem in this state, where they are well known and
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where their business integrity i1s above reproach. They are
among the conservative and substantial money makers ot this
country. and have built up a business destined to
increasingly promote the general prosperity." (Portrait and
Biographical Record of Portland & Vicinity, p. €14)

When Charles Muckle died on April 27, 1918, Amy Georges his
niece. inherited his house.When she died in 1973 at the age
of 893, the house was left to Lois Cox Williams. a
granddaughter ot Annie Muckle Cox. Charles Muckle’s cister.
Locally the house is known as the Amy George house, because
ot the many years ot her residency in it.

80 ADDRESS: 325 8 lset Street
CLASSIF1ICATION: Secondary bigniticant
OWNER: Corey Joe Minnick, FO Box 612, St Helens UR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41324 TAX LOT: 1700

PLAT: St. Helens Luf: v, 14 BLOCK: 1Y

YEAR BUILT: 1909 SI1YLE: Crattsman w/Llassical Details
ALTERATIUONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION® The building is a one story rectangular structure
with an asymmetirical three-bay front. It has a bellcast root
with a bellcast attic dormer on its front tacade. It is sided
with "Calitornia® clapboards and has a high toundation which
is sheathed with a clapboard skirting. The windows are
generally one over one double-hung wood sash and there are
crown moldings above the doors and windows. The reentrant
porch extends across the tront of the building and is
supported by four Tuscan cclumns. The front door has a single
light above and three panels below, two of which are detailed
with a garland motif. The exterior ot the house appears
unaltered except for the front steps and hand rail and the
southern half of the porch foundation which is sheathed with
plywood. On the rear of the property is an “L* shaped hip
roof, eaveless tract style duplex. It is classified as a
Compatible Non-Gontributing structure.
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81 ADDRESS: 333 S 1st SBtreet
CLASSIFICATION: Frimary Signiticant
OWNEH: Laurence % Jo Ann Higgs, 0 Box 41, St Helens UK 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 413724 TAX LOT: 1600

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: 8, 15 BLOCK: 1v
YEAR BUILT: ca. 1900 STYLE: Victorian Lottage
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Hesidence

DESGCRIPTION: The Isbister House 1s 2 one and cone halt stary
rectangular structure with an irregular three-bay tront. 1t
haes a truncated hip roof with shed dormers on the north and
south sides and is sheathed with shiplap siding. The windows
are generally one over one doutle-hung wood sash and an
octagonal bay is located at the north end ot the front
facade. One large tixed window with small panes above is
located at the south end of the front tacade. The porch which
extends across the tront ot the house,. has an attacned hip
roof and is supported by four square posts which are unevenly
spaced. The only discernikle alterations are the tfoundaticn
sheathing and tenestration on the south side. 1t also appears
that the porch railing may have been altered.

The Isbister house is associated with Elizabeth and Thomas
Isbister who moved to St Helens in 1308 and owned and
cperated the Orcadia Hotel. (22),

8z ADDRESS: 1855 N 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Eugene & Margaret Jewell, 153 5. Znd, 5t Helens UR 97001

ASSESSOR MAF: 513433 TAX LOT: 11200

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: 17 BLOCK: 28

YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: American Foursquare
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Kesidence

DESCRITPTION® This large two and one halt story residence 1s
square in plan with an hip roof and dormers on all
elevations. 1t has clapboard siding and tive toot high
vertical board skirting which covers the foundation. A
central brick chimney pierces the hip root. The wood entry
door has three parnels and one light. Fenestiration is regqular,
windows are cne over one doubkle-hung wood sash. paired in the
dormers. The porch along the east tacade is supported by tour
truncated. boxed posts and is covered with a hip root. Steep
wooden steps lead to the entry. A hip root addition has been
made to the rear of the house. The alterations to the
building are minor and it is in good condition.
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83 ADDRESS: 145 N ¥nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-Lontributing
OWNER: Larry & Deanna Scott, 145 N 2nd. St Helens UK Y7051

ASSESSOR MAF: 513453 TAX LOT: 11100

FLAl: St. Helens tar: 1y, Ft of 12 BLOCK: 2d
YEAR BUlLT: 1906 STYLE: ®em=s Vernacular
ALTERATIONS: Extensive UsE: Residence

DESCRIFTION: This 1s a one and one halt story structure,
rectangular 1in plan with a gable roof, asphalt shinale
siding, and a concrete +oundation. It has one over one
double-hung sash windows on the first and second stories and
a porch on the south facade. lhe original wooden posts have
been bricked over. lhe siding, porch and ° tfoundation
alterations have signiticantly changed the appearance ot the
residence. {f 1t were restored, 1t would be -classified as
Primary Signiticant

84 ADDRESS: N. 2nd Street

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

DWNER: Harold & Kathryn Kreger, 123 N Znd, 5t Helens OR 97051
ASSESSOR MAF:  S13433 TAX LOT: 11000

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 19, pt of 12 BLOCK: 28
USE: Side Yard

85 ADDRESS: 125 N 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Harold & Kathryn Kreger, 12% N. Znd, St Helens OR 97001

ASSESSOR MAF: 5135433 TAX LOT: 10900
PLAT: St. Helens LOT:s 20 BLOCK: 28
YEARR BRUILT: 1925 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Kesidence

DESCRIPTION: This residence is rectangular ir/plan, with a
low-pitched gable roof, decorative exposed ratters and
decarative bargeboard. 1t is sided with shingles and has six
over one and four over one double-hung sash windows as well
as a large fixed window ot ten lights. The louvered basement
windows have seven lights. The porch across the east facade
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has two truncated boxed posts and the main door ott the porch
has three lights. Concrete steps lead to the porch. A garage
has been added tc the concrete basement area. A covered
parking area is north ot the residence.

86 ADDRESS: 115 N 2nd Street
CLASSIF1CATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Roger % Margaret Lain, 115 N 2nd, St Helens UR 9/031

ASSESSOR MAF: $513433 Tax LOT: 10800

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 21, pt of 12 BLOCK: 24
YEAR BUILT: 1918 STYLE: Hungalow
ALTERATIONS: Moderate UsSE: Residence

DESCRIPTION® This is a one and one halt story bungaiow with a
low pitched gable root, with exposed rafters and decorative
brackets. The original siding has been replaced with fire
retardant shingle siding, The windows are paired and =single
double-hung wood sash.: tixed wood sash and aluminum sliders.
The main door has one light and a transom. The front porch
has been enclosed: the boxed columns have become pilasters.
Alterations to the windows and siding could ke easiy
reversed. The building is in good condition.

87 ADDRESS: 165 § 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Paul % Florence Faulson, 163 5§ Znd, St Helens OR 97041

ASSESSOR MAP: 431322 TAX LOT: 300
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 17 BRLOCK: 27
YEAR BUILT: 1914 STYLE: Crattsman
ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: This is a two story residence, rectangular in
plan, covered with a low pitched gable roof. and sided with
asbestos shingles. It has a two tocot high skirting which
covers the foundation. A brick chimney pierces the gable
ridge. Fenestration is irregqular; windows are one over one
double-hung sash, fixed and casement. The two story porch on
the east facade has truncated posts and a¥ eneissed rail.
Alterations to the building include new siding, new windows,
and changes to the porch. The building could easily be
restored.
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88

CLASSIF1CATION: Vacant

OWNER: Falmer & Norma Olson, 164 S 3rd, St Helens UK 97031
ASSESESOR MAP: 41322 FAX LUT: 400

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 18 BLOCE: 27

USE: Vacant Lot

89 ADDRESS: 185 5 Znd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-Contributing
OWNER: Mary K Watkins, 185 S Znd, 5t Helens UK 97001

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 500

FLAT: St. Helens LO1: 19, 20 BLUCK: 27
YEAR BUILT: 1960 (Kemodeled) STYLE: Moditisd Hocrpion
ALTERATIONS: Extensive USk: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The Watkins House, 3 one story residence, was
extensively remodeled in the 196U’s atter a major portion ot
the building was destroyed by &a fire. 1t 1s rectangular in
plan, covered with a low pitch gable root, sided with raked
shingles and vertical toards in the gable ends. A large
exterior brick chimney 1is on the <couth elevation.
Fenestration is irregular; windows are fixed- one over one,
double-hung sash, casement, and aluminum sliders. Goncrete
steps lead to the covered entry door. Gabled additions extend
from the south and west elevations. Little of the cider
structure exists, as extensive changes have occcurred.

This was the home of the parents of Fred Watkins. who at the
age of three, came with with his parents i1n 1880 to St
Helens. Mary Deahn Watkins, Fred’s wite currently resides in
the home.

90 ADDRESS: Northwest corner ot St Helens & 2Znd Streets
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant
OWNER: James K Scott, 240 St Helens, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 600
FLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt ot 21,22 BLOCK: 27

USE: Vacant Lot
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91 ADDRESS: Hetween Znd % 3rd on St Helens Street
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant
OWNER: James Scott, 240 St Helens, S5t Helens UR Y7051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41222 MAX Lai: 700
FLAT: St. Helens LOT: vt ot 21,22 BLUCK: 27

USE: Side vyard

92 ADDRESS: 260 St Helens Street

CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-Contributing

OWNER: James K Scott, 240 5t Helens, St Helens UR 97051
ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 701

FLAT: St. Helens LDT: Pt of 1,2,21,22 BLOCE: 27
YEAR BUILT: 1885 STYLE: Rmresd Vernacular
ALTERATIONS: Extensive USE: Residence

- St
DESCRIPTION: This is a one and one halt story residence. ‘LY in
plan with a eaveless gable rcof and a concrete basement. 1t
is covered with plywood and shingle siding. All original
windows have been replaced with aluminum sliders and the
criginal doors have been replaced with wooden hollow core
doors. A two door garage has also been added. Extensive
alterations have been made toc this building. It it were
restored. it would be classified as primary signiticant,

93 ADDRESS: 280 St Helens Street
CLASSIF1CAT10N: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Dennis & Katherine Hi 28O St Helens, St Helens UOR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 800
PLAT: St. Helens . LOT: Pt of 1,2 BLOCK: 27
YEAR BUILT: 1908 STYLE: American Foursquare

ALTERATIONS: Minor-Aeo-w+ USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: This two story building is square in plan. two
bays wide, and has a hip roof with boxed eaves. It is clad
with shiplap siding and has a four foot high foudation
sheathed with vertical siding boards. The windows are one
opver one» double-hung wood sashs the windows on the north
facade have been replaced with aluminum sliders. The two
story porch on the north facade is partially enclosed. The
front entry has been modified with a plywood sided enclosure
on the first story. These alterations appear to be easily
reversed. :
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94 ADDRESS: 184 Zrd Street
CLASSI{FICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Barry and Katherine Settle, 33411 Blaha Koad, Warren UR Y7053

ASSESSUOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: qou

PLAT: St. Helens LOY: & BLOCE: 27

YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Vernacular Victorian
ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: A simple one and one halt story residence.
rectangular in plan with a gable root and one central brick
chimney. It is sided with shiplap with plywood on the east
(rear) portion of the building. Some of the double-hung sash
windows of one over one have been replaced with aluminum
sliders. Stairs lead to the porch on the west tacade which 1s
covered with a hip root. The original porch posts and rails
and main entry dcor have been replaced.

9% ADDRESS: 174 § 3rd
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Loretta McManigal, 174 S 3rd, S5t Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 1000
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 4 BLOCK: 27
YEAR BUILT: 1921 STYLE: Crattsman
ALTERATIUONS: Moderate USE: HResidence

DESCRIPTION® This one story structure 1s square in-plan and has
& hip root with an exterior brick chimney on the south
elevation. Vinyl siding has covered over the original siding.
however the integrity of the building remains. Fenestration
ic reqular; one over one double-hung sash windows are on
either side of the main wooden door with eighteen lights.
Four boxed- truncated posts support the porch on the west
facade. The original wooden porch rail and stars have been
altered and plywood now covers the foundation. The residence
is in good condition and could easily be restored.
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96 ADDRESS: 164 § 3rd Street

CLASSIF1CATION: Secondar;@ Signiticant

OWNER: Palmer & Norma Olson, 164 § 3rd, St Helens OR Y7051
ASSESSUR MAP: 41322 TAX LOT: 1100

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: & BLOCE: 2/

YEAR BUILT: 1918 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: HResidence

DESGRIPTION: This is 3 wood frame building of one and one halt
stories. It has a gable root with exposed ratters, decorative
krackers and two chimneys. It is covered with compostion
shingle siding and has a concrete foundation. The windows are
ohe over one doukle-hung sash with cornices intact. The entry
door has three vertical panels and eight lights. The hip root
porch is supported by three boxed posts and haes a simple wood
rail (not original). Two gatkled dormers have been added to
the roof and a small addition has been made tc¢ the southeast
elevation. The siding- window and porch alterations could be
fairly easily reversed.

97 ADDRESS: 154 S 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: American Legion Post #42, 154 S 3rd, 5t Helens OR 927031

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 1200

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Fart of 6 BLOCK: 27
YEAR BUILT: 1895 STYLE: Craftsman
ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: American Legion Hall

DESGCRIPTION® The former home of John H. Wellingtoen, now the
American Legion Post #4Z. is a one and one halft story
structure covered with a gable roof with boxed eaves and
partial returns. A brick chimney with a corbeled cap is seen
above the roofline. The buildng is sided with shingless a
four and a half toot foundation is covered with vertical
boards. The windows are one over one double-hung sash and
fixed with six lights. The main doaor has four fixed lights
and the french doors which lead to the porch enclosure have
fifteen lights each. The porch on the west facade, now
enclosed. has boxed posts and a new hip root. Most of the
alterations appear tc have been made some time ago and do not
change the integrity ot the building.



FHA-8-300 (11-78)

United States Department of the Interior
Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service

National Register of Historic Places
Inventory—Nomination Form

Continuation sheet , Item number 7

J.H. Wellington was the sherift ot Columbia County from
1920-1928. In 1931 he became Gounty Judge. He was born 1in
England and joined the British Navy at the age ot fifteen. In
the fall of 1891 he arrived in Portland and decided to quit
the sea. Soon thereatter he moved to St Helens, and lived in
thizs recidence. Mr. Wellington was married to Mary 7.
Blakesly and they had one son, Lester. When J.H. Wellington
died in 1949 he donated his home to the American Legion. of
which he was a member, having served in the U.5. Nawvy in
World War I. (Columtia Gounty History, Vol. 111, p. 45)

98 , ADDRESS: 144 S 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- Lontrlbutlng
OWNER: Kenneth & Katherin Jillson, 124 N 4th, S5t Helens UR 97031

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 1300
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft of 6 ] BLOCK: 27
YEAR BUILT: ¥5 /o x<nomey, STYLE: = L Koz 3

ALTERATIONS: Extensive USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: This is a wood frame structure, two stories high.
rectangular in plan and three bays wide. 1t has a low pitched
gable roof, aluminum siding and a concrete toundation. The
‘L" shaped porch has boxed posts and a wood rail. The
criginal windows have been replaced with aluminum sliders.
The residence has lost its i1ntegqrity because ot extensive
remodeling. :

99 ADDRESS: 134 § 3rd Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant

OWNER: Evelyn Adolphs, 134 § 3rd, S5t Helens OR 97051
ASSESSOR MAFP: 41322 ‘ TAX LOT: 1400

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 8 BLOCK: 27
YEAR BRUILT: 1920 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERAT1ONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCGRIPTION: This bungalow style residence is one story.
rectangular in plan and two irregular bays wide. It has a low
pitched gable roof with exposed rafters and purlins. is sided
with clapboards and has a concrete focundation. Windows are
siX over one and one over one double-hung sash. A gable
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roofed porch with exposed ratters on the west facade covers
the entry door. Goncrete steps lead to the entry porch. A
minor alteration includes a porthole window added to the west
facade.

100 ADDRESS: 122 S 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Neon—-Contributing
OWNER: Russell % Jody bavis, 2B35 S.E. Walnut, Hillsboro OR 97123

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 1500

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: ¥ BLOCK: 27

YEAR BUILT: B8 Ja<tsve STYLE: Moditied oo
ALTERATIONS: Extensive USE: Residence

DESGCRIPTION® This residence 15 two stories, rectanguiar in
plan. and three kays wide. 1t has a jerkinhead roof, siding
of mascnite horizontal beard and aluminum weather board. and
a concrete foundation. Windows are one over one double-hung
sash and fixed with four lights. On the west tacade, tacing
3rd street, there is a pedimented porch with boxed posts. A
noncompatiktle two story addition has been made to the east
facade.

101 ADDRESS: 114 S 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant '
OWNER: HRicardo & Lorenza Jauregul, 114 § 3rd, St Helens OK 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 1600
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Fr ot 10 BLOCK: 27
YEAR BUILT: 191Z STYLE: Craftsman

ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION® This building is a one story rectangular structure
with an asymmetrical three-kay front. It has a steeply
pitched hipped roof with exposed rafter tails and clapboard
siding. Below the drip cap and water table the foundation is
sheathed with vertical. beaded tongue and groove siding. The
windows are broad one over one double-hung sash. A reentrant
porch extends across the front ot the house and is supported
by three boxed posts. Except tor renewed porch rails and

stairs,the exterior of the house appears to be intact. The
house faces west on 3rd street.
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102 ADDRESS: 251 St Helens Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: St Helens School Dist, 215 8 2Znd, St Helens UR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 4132 TAX LOT: 7400

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 8,9,10,11,12,1%,14,15
BLOCE: 26

YEARR BUILT: 1919 STYLE: Georgian Revival

ALTERAT10ONS: Minor USE: School

DESCRIPTION: The John Gumm Scheool is a two story 'L’ shaped
structure with a five-bay symmetrical front. The parapet wall
across the front tacade and east and west sides is detailed
with a simple entablature. The building has stucco siding and
eight over eight double-hung wood sash windows which are
generally in groupings of four. The central bay 1s a
pedimented pavilion supported bv two pairs of large Tuscan
columns. At the second story level thae is a grouping of
three, eight over eight double-hung sash windows and at the
first story is the central doorway with side and top lights.
The wall in this area is detailed as though it were dressed
masonry. The bays flanking the central pavilion have
groupings of four double~hung windows at the first and second
stories and the end bays have fixed csash windows high in the
second story wall. The east and west sides of the building
are three bays wide. The central bay has a doorway with top
and side lights at the first story and irregular fenestration
at the second story. The central bay is tlanked with
identical bays which have four dcuble-hung sash windows at
the first and second story level. The fenestration on the
rear of the building is irregular. Except 1for the
modification ot some windows on the rear facade ,the building
appears to be entirely intact.

In 1902 the first John Gumm Schools a2 two story wood frame
structure with a stone foundation, was built on the site of
the present John Gumm School. It was destroyed in a ftire
which broke out during the night of September 18, 1818. The
origin of the fire was a mystery although many telieved it
had been started by an arsonist. Atter much delay and public
discussion, "the school directors called a special meeting ot
the legal voters of District No. Z» St Helens, on December 7.
They proposed to construct a building of tile and ftire
resisting material on the site ot the old building.
....Chafliman of the board, LaBare called an enthusiastic
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crowd to order on the 7th and stated the purpose ot the
meeting. Bill Ketel, a regular at all the school meetings.
was recognized by the chairman and suggested building the
schoolhouse in various sections of the city, and made other
*useful” suggestions which were disregarded. Many cpoke in
favor of the fairgroud location (near 11th street) and others
opposed it. The architect was finally called on-. as well as a
representative of Morris Bres. ot Portland who explained in
detail the method his firm weould follow in financing the
building. Instead of bonds, negotiable warrants were to ke
issued. Finally: L.R. Ruthertford called tor a vote on
issuance of bonds or warrants to build the schooclhouse, and
the vote carried 54 to 27. It was decided to accept the plans
of Tourtellotte and Hummel, Architects.' (History of Schools
Comprising Dist. 502G, St Helens, Oregon. Marguerite
Egelston. Master ot Litrarianship: University ot Fortland-
June 1861. pp. 74-75) On September Z4. 1819, a tablet was
placed at the entrance to the new school. It bears the
following inscription® *John Gumm School erected. A.D. 18138
W.J.Mellinger Chairman, H.E. LaBare. J.W. Akin. Mrs Frank
George. Clerk. Tourtellotte & Hummel, Architects: Hoover &
McHeil, Contractors, St Helens Oregon.'

103 ADDRESS: 252 5 3rd Street
CLAGSIFICATION: Frimary Signiticant
OWNER: Ora Hattan, 252 § 3rd, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 7300

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 5,6,7,16,17; pt of 18 BLOCE: 26
YEAR BUILT: 1908 STYLE: fuead Vernacular Earmbouse
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIFTION: The Hattan House is a one and one halt story, *T*
shape structure with irregular tenestration. lt has a
intersecting gable roof and is sided with shiplap. Below the
drip cap and water table. the foundation is sheathed wih
vertical tongue and greove boards. The windows are one over
one double-hung wood sash. It has an attached porch which
extends along the eastern front side and has a complex hipped
rootf. It is supportedisix turned posts and pilasters at the
wall edge. Except for two chimney tops which have been capped
at the roof peak. a small addition on the south side and a
classically styled entrance on the north side, the building
appears to remain entirely intact., The house taces east
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toward the Ceolumbia River and has a large tront garden which
i1s developed with a rolling lawn, old oak trees, fruit trees,

and ornamental flower beds. Although the builing date for the
structure would place it within the secondary period. the
form. style, and detailing of the house is representative ot
the primary period ot construction in 5t Helens.

This house was the residence of Robert S Hattan who ‘came to
St Helens in 1896 and was deputy sheritf., He acceptably
filled that office and in 1900 was elected sherift. serving

two terms. He won the contidence ot the people by his conduct
ot the sheriff’s office and in 1904 was elected county judge,
serving in that capacity until 1908. During his
administration the new courthouse was built, and 1t was
largely through his strict attention to business and interest

in the matter that the building was erected and completed at
a minimun cost, In 1813 My Hattan was elected county
treasurer and served in this capacity until elected judge.
His record in county service, which was tor a peried of
twenty years, was excellent, and although a staunch democrat
living in a republican county, he held the contidence of his
constituents and was respected by all regardless ot party
atfiliation. (8t Helens Sentinel-Mist. Nov Z3. 1917, p. 1) He

died November 18, 1917 while serving as County Judge. The
house is still owned by his descendents.

104 ADDRESS: 275 8 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: John & Florence Rose, PO Box 568, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 6600

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 4,18,20; 19 BLOCK: 26
YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: Residence

DESGCRIPTION®* The building iz a 6ne and one halt story
rectangular structure with irregular two-bay tront tacade. It
has a gable roof with the gable end oriented toward the
street. The gable ends are detailed with purlins and
stickwork. There is a shed dormer on the south tacade and a
gable dormer on the north tacade. The house 1s sided with
*California" clapboards and below the drip cap and water
table verticals tongque and groove siding. All the windows
have been replaced with anodized aluminum windows but the
window trim remains intact. An attached shed root porch
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extends across the tront tacade and 1s combined with a
recessed balcony at the second story level. The porch 1s
supported by three large boxed posts which rest on a sohid
rail.

The house was built in 1916 by E.A. Crouse, a local architect
and contractor, tor Dr. A.J. Pe2el who resided in the house to
the south (105). Upon its completion. Dr Pe=l rented the

residence to M. Rosenthal who was in the dry goods business.

109 ADDRESS: 285 S 2Znd Street
CLASSIF1CATI1ON: Frimary Signiticant
OWNER: Theodore % Hazel Henningsen, 285 S 2nd, St HElens UR %7051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LDT: 6700

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 2,3%,20,21 BLOCK: 26

- YEAR BUILT: 1900 STYLE: Crattsman w/Classical Details
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The Masten-Feel House is a one and one halt story
structure. square in plan with a symmetrical three-bay tront.
It has a steeply pitched hip roof with boxed eaves and hipped
dormers on east. south. and northern elevations with paired
eighteen over one double-hung wood sash windows, 1t is sided
with shingles and belows, the drip cap and water takle, the
foundation is sheathed with clapboards. The 1front docr with
sidelights is flanked by grouped windows with twelve over
one, fifteen over one and twelve over one lighted sash. A
reentrant porch extends across the southern and eastern sides
of the house and is supported with seven Tuscan columns. The
railing between the columns is vertical two by twos with a
top and bottom cap. Alterations to this structure are minimal
and consist of minor changes to the porch on the south side
and to the foundation on the north side. The house faces east
and is situated on the top of a rock clitf which overlooks
downtown St Helens and the Columbia River.

It appears that the house may have been constructed for G.G.
Masten. owner of a lumber company but was sold early to Dr
A.J. Peel. Dr Peel. a physician and surgeon, located in St
Helens in 1911. He was born in New London. Canada. where he
practiced his profession for some time before becoming
attached to the British army as a surgeon with a regiment in
South Africa. (5t Helens Mist, Special Edition, Sept 15
181s)
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106 ADDRESS: 295 S Znd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: PRernard % Harbara Chabala, 295 & 2Znd, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 faX LOT: 6800
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 22¢ pt ot 21 BLOCK: Z6
YEAR BUILT: 1911 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Minor-Moderate USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The Laud Rutheriord House is @ one and one halt
story structure which is generally rectangular in shafpe and
has an irregular two-bay front. It has a gable roof with the
eave end toward the street. The gable ends are decorated with
crnamentally cut barge boards. heavy brackets and stickwork.
A shed roof dormer is centered on the front roof. It provides
access to a recessed porch within the roof through double
leaf doors. It is sided with shingles and the windows are
generally six over one double-hung wood sash. A reentrant
porch extends across the front facade and is supported by
three stout truncated, okelisk posts which rest on shingle
sidaed piers. The porch railing is constructed of wvertical
boards with a top and kottom cap. The front door is flanked
bv sidelights. The only major alteraticn appears to be an
addition at the south end of the porch which extends across
part of the southern facade. 1t is detailed the same as the
existing house except for the molding around the windows. The
house faces east onto 2nd street at the top of a rock blutf
which overlooks downtown S5t Helens and the Golumbia River.

Laud Ruthertford. for whom the house was built. moved to St
Helens in 1910 to become Secretary-Treasurer ot the Columbia
GCounty Abstract Gompany. He built the first brick business
block on 1st street (64). "He served on the St Helens CGity
Gouncil and on the school board, and was responsible for the
introduction of manual training and home economics courses in
the high school. His dominant interest was in young people
and athletics for young people. In May 1934 he was appointed
County Judge by Governor Julius Meier, serving until after
the general election the following November." (Isbister
Family Scrapkook. newcspaper obituary) He was also very active
in civic affairs. He died in &t Helens May 12, 1844,

The site ot his house was the former site of a church
constructed in 1853 by Henry M. Knighton. Dr Thomas Condon
who came as a missionary in 1853 was the {first minister
there. Condon, who also used the building as a school. had
Thomas A. McEride, who later became an Oregon Supreme CGCourt
Justice, as one ot his pupils there. (Columbia Gounty
History: VI, p. 6)
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107 ADDRESS: 270 Cowlitz Street
CLASSIFIUCATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Jennie Somerville, 270 Cowlitz, St Helens Ok v/051

ASSESSOR MAF: 413218 TAX LOT: 6500

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft of 1, 2 BLOCE: 28
YEAR BUILT: 1920 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: HMinor USE: Residence

DESCRIFTION: The building is 3 one story. rectangular structure
with slightly ag#symetrical three-bay front. It has a gable
root with the gable end oriented toward the street. The gaktle
end is decorated with heavy brackets and lattice work in its
peak. 11 is sided with horizontal clapbocards which extend
down to a low concrete foundation. The windows are one over
cne double-hung wood sash. The attached porch extends across
the eastern haltf ot the front facade. 1t has a gable root
with purlins. and lattice work in the gable peak. It is
supported by two truncated obelisk posts which rest on sided
piers. The porch railing is constructed of wvertical boards
with a top and bottom cap. A square bay projects from the
east side of the building and is supported on purlins.
Alterations to the exterior are minimal. The house faces
south on Cowlitz street at the top of the rock bluft.

108 ADDRESS: 274 Cowlit: Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non-Contributing
OWNER: FRose and Ralph Valpiani, 274 Cowlitz, St Helens UR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41321 TAX LOT: 7000

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 1, 2 BLOCK: 26
YEAR BUILT: 1940 STYLE: Moderne
ALTERATIONS: Minor ' USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The house is a two story irregularly shaped
building with a hipped root. 1t has horizontal beveled tongue
and groove siding with two over two horizontally paned double -
hung wood sash windows. The entrance which is at the second
story level has side lights ot glass block and is covered
with a cantilevered porch root. The house faces south
-southeast onto Cowlitz and is located at the western edge of
the rock bluff.
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109 ADDRESS: 301 S Znd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Fearl Challacombe, 301 5 Znd, 5t Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41324 TAX LOT: 1900

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt ot 12 BLOCE: 25
YEAR BUILT: ca. 1920 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: HResidence

DESCRIPTION: The building i1s a ohe story rectangular structure
with a slightly asymmetrical threebay tront. It has a
jerkinead roof with the eave end toward the street and is
sided with beveled tongue and groove siding. Eelow the drip
cap. the foundation is csheathed with horizontal clapboards.
Generally, the windows are one over one double hung wood
sash» however the windows on the front tacade are tixed with
small panes above and in a group ot three on either side ot
the front door. The attached porch roct extends halt way
across the front of the house and has a gable roect. It is
supported with two boxed posts and has stick work 1n its
gable end. The porch railing is constructed ot vertical two
by twos with a top and bottom cap and extends across the
entire front of the house. The only alteration appears to be
to the foundation which has had a garage entrance cut into it
and has been resheathed. The house taces east onto Znd street
and is sited at the front of the rock blutf which overlooks
downtown St Helens and the Golumbia River.

110 ADDRESS: 3215 § 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Otis Chamberlain, 315 S 2nd, S5t Helens Oregon

ASSESSOR MAF: 41324 TAX LOT: 2000 :
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 12,13 BLOCK: 235
YEAR BUILT: ca. 1920 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Minor—Moderate USE: Residence

DESGRIPTION: The structure is a one and one haltf story
rectangular building with a symmetrical threebay front. 1t
has a jerkinhead roof with the rake end oriented toward the
street and a shed dormer on its northern side facade. The
rake end of the building is detailed with brackets. The
building has been covered over with tire retardant shingles
but all of the trim is intact: The windows are various and
consist of one over one double-hung wood sash and twelve
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light casement windows. The attached porch has a shed roof
and extends across the central two thirds ot the tront
facade. It is supported by two groupings ot three chamgfered
posts and chinoiserie stickwork ts used to detail the porch
posts and railing. The only other notatle alteration to the
structure. besides its resheathing. is a shed addition which
was added to the south side and is set back from the street.
The structure faces east onto Znd street and overlooks
downtown St Helens and the Columbia River from the top ot a
rock cliff.

111 ADDRESS:  22% S 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Wilbur Wellborn, 325 § 2nd, St Helens UOR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41324 TAX LOT: 2100

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 14,15; pt of 15 BLUCK: &5
YEAR BUILT: 1922 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS:  Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIFPTION: The building is a one story rectangular structure
with symmetrical three-tay front. It has a gable roct with
the gable end oriented toward the street and is sided with
clapboards. Below the drip cap and water takle, the
foundation is sheathed with chiplap. The windows are various
with one over one double-hung wood sash on the sides and rear
facades and windows that are grouped with a vertical muntin
pattern at the top across the front. The attached porch
extends across the northern half the front tacade and is
detailed with trellises and ornamentally cut beams and
ratters. Three pairs of posts on sided piers support the
trellis and porch. The porch rail is constructed ot
crnamentally cut boards., An intact one car garage is sited to
the soguth of the house. The house faces east onto 2nd street
ocverlooking downtown St Helens and the Columbia River and is
in a swale on the rock crest. According to long time 8§t
Helens residents the house ws the home of the Beavers family.
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112 ADDRESS: 35% S 2nd Street
CLASSIFICAT1UN: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Vernon % tlisabeth Hanson, 355 5 2nd, 8t Helens UR ?/0o1d

ASSESSOR MAF: 41324 TAX LOT: 2Z00
PLAT: 5t. Helens LOT: 16, 17 BLOCK: 23
YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Minor && Moderate USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION®* The Morton House is a two story rectangular
structure with a symmetrical three-bay tront. It has a gable
roct with the eave end oriented toward the street capped with
a small gakle roof dormer. The gable ends are detailed with
brackets. The second story of the house is sheathed with
shingles and the first story with raked cshingles. The windows
are one over one double-hung wood sash ot various dimensicons,
paired and single. The attached front porch extends across
the central portion of the front facade and has a gable roof
which has bteen extended with shed additions to the north and
south., The original porch rootf i1s supported by two boxed
posts which rest on a solid rail. The front doocr 15 tlanked
by side lights. 14naddition to the above mentioned siding and
porch alterations, the house has been “colonialized’ with
green shutters and an addition has been added to the rear.
The house. which faces east onto Zind street, sits on a double
size lot at the top of the cliff overlocking downtown 5t
Helens and the Columbia River. An old tashioned garden
extends irom the north of the house.

The Morton House is associated with S.6. Morton who was
connected with the Astoria & Golumbia Railroad and Simpson
Lumber Co, in Astoria betore coming to St Helens. He worked
as an auditor for Mist Publishing Go. In 18923, he built a new
building for the Mist (50). He was active in civic attairs

and served as Mayor ot St Helens.
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113 ADDRESS: 365 8 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: George & Mary FPerkins, 165 5 2Znd, St Helens UR 970351

ASSESSUR MAF: 41324 TAX LOT: 4600

FLAT: St. Helens LOF: &, 18 BLOCK: 29
YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The Hamlin McCormick House 1s @ one and one halt
story, rectangular shaped building with a slightly
asymmetrical three-bay front. It has a2 gable root with the
eave end criented toward the street and a central shed dormer
on the front elevation. The gatble ends are supported with
btrackets as are two gable roct bays on the side elevations,
The house is sided with narrow horizontai clapboards and
shingles cn the dormer. The windows are gencsrally one over
one double-hung wood sacsh on the rear and side elevations and
large fixed windows on the front elevation. The otf center
front door i1s flanked by ten-light sidelights. The reentrant
porch which extends across the entire tront facade s
supported by two large boxed posts which rest on a solid
rail. The exterior of the building appears toc have been chiy
minimally altered over the years. The tront stairs and hand
rail have been renewed and one end ot the porch has been
glassed in, and an addition has been added to the rear. The
house. which cits on a doutle sized lot, is surrounded bty a
low stone wail. The house faces east onto Znd street and
cverlooks the Columbia Fiver and downtown St Helens tram the
top of a stone clift, '

The 1816 Special Edition of the St Helens Mist indicates that
this house was the residence ot Hamlin F. McCormick.
McCormick "came to 5t Helens in 1808 with several ot the
cfficials of the then newly organized Charles R. McGormick
Lumber Company to look over a favorable sawnill =site.
Construction of the mill was started in the same year and the
St Helens Lumber Co.,» as it was then called, began coperations
in September 1909 with H.F. McCormick as general manager.®
(St Helens Sentinel-Mist, February 12, 1837, p. 1) Within the
next few years he organized a number ot other companies
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including the Columbia County Lumber Co.- the &t Helensg Tie
and Timber Co.. the St Helens Ship EBEuilding Co.. the St
Helens Wood Products Go.: the St Helens Pulp and Paper Co.,
and the Fir-Tex Insulating Board Co. He alsc was responsikble
for developing a creosoting treatment plant and other
enterprises which added u:theindu trial lite ot St Helens.
He was also intluential m developing a good water supply
and electric system tor St Helens. Hamlin and his brother
Charles were instrumental in the major development ot St
Helens during the secondary periocd when the population
exploded in a8 period of three years from 4U0 to 1%00. 1n
later years the McGormicks scld this residence and
established a second home on a tract ot land adjacent to St
Helens on the south east.

114 ADDRESS: 5. 3rd Street

CLASSIFICATION: vacant

OWNER: Vernon & Elisabeth Hanson, 325 § Znd, St Helens OR 97051
ASSESSOR MAF: 41324 TAX LOT: 4700

FLAT: 5t. Helens LOT: & BLOCK: 25

USE: Vacant Lot

115 ADDRESS: 344 § 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-Contributing
OWNER: Kermit & Dorothy Hougland, 344 S 3rd, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41324 TAX LOT: 4800
FLAT: St. Helens LOT: 7 BLOCK: 25
YEAR BUILT: 1924 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Extensive USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The building is a one story, irregularly shaped
structure with an asymmetrical three-bay front. I{ has a
gable roof with the eave end oriented toward the street and a
rear shed addition. The gable ends are detailed with cut
bargeboards and purlins and the original siding has been
stuccoed over. The windows have alsc been replaced with
double-hung aluminum sash, It has a small frant stoop which
appears to have been altered. If the structure were restored
it would be classitied as Secondary Signiticant.
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116 ADDRESS: 334 5 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-Contributing
OWNER: Henry & Luree Calhoun, 334 5 3rd, 5t Helens OR %/031

ASSESSOR MAFP: 41324 TAX LOY: 4900

PLAT: St. Helens Lul: Fart of 8 BLOCK: 25
YEAR BUILT: 1918 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Extensive USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: Tha house is a one and one halt story rectangular
shaped building with a symmetrical three-bay front. The gable
roof is oriented with i1ts eave end toward the street and the
gable end is supported with brackets. It has been resided
with aluminum claptoard siding and the windows have been
replaced with aluminum sash windows. The tront porch extends
across the central third ot the front facade and has an
attached gable rocf. The porch has a wrought iron railing. A
shed addition has added to the south side. 1f the structure
were rastored, it would ke classitied as a Secondary
Significant structure.

117 ADDRESS: 324 5 Zrd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Lawson Gorman, 324 8§ 3rd, St Helens UR 927031

ASSESSOR MAF: 41324 TAX LOT: 5000

PLAT: St. Helens LDT: Ft of B,9 BLOCK: 29
YEAR BUILT: ca. 1920 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION®* The building is a8 one and one halt story,
rectangular structure with a symmetrical three-kay front. The
gable roof is oriented with its eave end to the street and
has brackets and stick work in the rake ends. A shed roof
dormer with a pair of one over one double-hung sash windows
faces the street. 1t has horizontal beveled tongue and groove
siding and below the drip cap and water table. vertical
boards sheath the foundation. The windows are one over one
double-hung wood sash, and a reentrant porch extends across
the entire front of the building. It is supported by four
pairs of posts with diagonal stick work between them. They
rest on a solid railing. A small bay has been added to the
rear on the north side and a flat roof garage has been added
to the south side of the structure, otherwise, the structure
is intact. The building faces west onto 3rd street.
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118 ADDRESS: 314 5 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: " Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: James & Debra Wheeler, X14 5§ Zrd, St Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41324 TAX LOT: S100

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft of 9,10 ELOCK: 25
YEAR BUILT: 1919 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The building ic a one and one half story,
rectangular structure with a symmetrical three-tay tront. 1t
has a gable root with the eave end oriented toward the street
and a shed dormer. The rake ends have brackets and there 1s
stick work in the gable ends. It has hoygizontal *Calitornia*
siding and vertical boards and battens below the drip cap and
water table. It has one over one double-hung wood sash
windows of various dimensions. A reentrant porch extends
across the entire front ot the building and is supported by
four boxed posts. The porch railing is constructed ot
vertical boards with & top and bottom cap. The tollowing
changes have been made to the structure®* a garage entrance
haes been constructed in the south end of the tront tacade,
shutters have been added to the dormer windows: and an
aluminum storm deoor has been added. The house taces west onto
3rd street.

119 ADDRESS: 271 Cowlitz Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary 8Significant
OWNER: Irvin & Naomi Brown, 271 Cowlit:z, St Helens UK 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41324 TAX LOT: 5290
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt 10,11 BLOCK: 28
YEAR BUILT: 1913 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Mi nor-ﬂod»erate USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION®* The building is a one and one half story
structure. rectangular in plan, with a symmetrical three-bay
front. It has a gable roof with the eave end oriented toward
the street and a shed dormer with a pair of one over one
double-hung sash windows. There are brackets and stick work
in the gable ends. The walls and foundation of the building
have been covered over with fire retardant shingles. A
reentrant porch extends across the front of the building and
is supported by focur boxed posts. The wvertical board rail
with top and bottom caps encloses the porch. The windows are
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cne over one doukle-hung wood sash of various Jdimensions., A
small cantilevered bay window projects from the west side ot
the building. The only othar alterations besides siding 15 a
flat rootf garage which has teen attached to the east side ot
the building. The house faces north onto Cowlitz street.

120 ADDRESS: 201 Cowlitz Street
CLASSIF1CATION: Secondary Sigmiticant
OWNER: MWilliam % Hatley Retta Blocksom, 201 Cowlitz,
5t Helens UR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41224 frx LOT: 5200

PLAT: St. Helens LO7T: Pt of 10,11,12,13 BLOCKE: =3
YEAR BUILT: ca. 1920 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The building i= a one and one halt story
structure. rectangular in plan with an asymmetrical two-bay
front. It has a gable roof with the eave end oriented toward
the street and a shed dormer with four. six over one
double-hung wood sash windows. It has horizontal beveled
tongue and groove siding above and below the drip cap and
water table. The windows are wood sash and are of wvarious
muntin designs. A reentrant porch extends across the tront ot
the building and is supportedby three boxed posts spaced
irregularly. The porch railing is constructed of alternating
narrow and wide boards and has a top and bottom rail. The
only exterior alteration appears to be a flat rooct garage
which has been added to the west side. The house taces north
cn GCowlitz street.

121 ADDRESS: 125 8§ 3rd Street

CLASSIFICATIDN: Secondary Signiticant

OWNER: Daniel Hunt, 125 § 3rd, St Helens DR 77031
ASSESSOR MAF: 41327 TAX LOT: 2300

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 14 BLOCK: 32
YEAR BUILT: 1914 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The building is a one and one halt story
rectangular structure with a symmetrical three-kay front. It
haec a gable roof with the eave end oriented to the street and
a shed dormer with three sets of eight by eight casement
windows. There are brackets at the gable ends. It has
clapboard siding and the raised toundation is sheathed with
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horizontal clapbocards below the drip cap and water table. The
windows are one over one double-hung wood sash ot various
dimencsions. The tront door has tive lhight sidelights and the
front porch which extends almost across the entire tront ot
the building has an attached shed root. It 15 supported by
two boxed posts and enclosed with a vertical bcard railing
with top and bottom cape. To the north ot the house 15 a
detached one car garage contemporary 1n design with the
house., The house taces east onto 3rd street.

|22 ADDRESS: 135 5 3rd Street

CLASSIFICATIUON: Secondary Signiticant

OWNER: Henry Stellflug, 135 § 3rd, 5t Helens Ok Y7051
ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 2400

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: Ft of 15 BLOCK: 32
YEAR BUILT: 1914 STYLE: PRungalow
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIFTION® The one and one half story tuilding 1s rectangular
in plan and has a three-bay symmetrical front. It has a gable
roof with the gable end oriented toward the street and shed
dormers to the sides, The gable ends are supported with
stacked wood brackets. The windows are one over one
double-hung wood sash with aluminum sash storm windows. It
has “California” clapboard siding and a toundation which 1s
skirted with the same siding kelow the drip cap and water
table. A reentrant porch extends across the front and is
supported by four boxed posts. The structure has been
minimally altered®* windows have been fplaced in the
foundation, a shed roof addition has been added to the south
side, and the porch hand rail has been renewed. The house
faces east on 3rd street.

23 ADDRESS: 155 S 3rd Street
CLASSIF)CATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Nick & Rose Federici, 144 S 14th, St Helens OR 97031

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 , TAX LOT: 2500
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 16; pt of 15,17 BLOCK: 32
YEAR BUILT: ca. 1920 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Minor-Moderate - USE: Residence

DESCRIFTION: The one and one half story building is rectangular
in plan and has an asymmetrical three-bay {ront. The gable
roof is oriented with its eave toward the street and is
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supported by purhns. It has "“California' clapbeoard siding,
and a stucco washed foundation below the drip cap and water
table. It has varicus shafped wcod ¢ash windows with a typical
tungalow muntin design. The porch. which is slightly ort
center, 1s a small stocp with an attached gable root. 1t is
supported by two boxed posts and has a concrete tloor., A one
story rear addition with a hip root extends across the back
ot the building. The buillding was moved from uptown ca. 1971,
and some changes appear to have occurred at that time, most
notably the foundation- front perch and perhaps the tront
door and some of the fenestration. The housa faces east on
3rd street and a large asphaltaed parking area extends tc the
north of the house.

124 ADDRESS: 163 & 165 S 3ird Street
CLASSIFICATION: Frimary Signiticant
OWNER: EKenneth Burton, 81% Cedaroak, St Helens UOR Y7031

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 2600

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: 18; pt of 17 BLOCE: 324
YEAR BUILT: 1910 S5TYLE: UWueen Anne Victorian
ALTERATIUNS: Minor USE: Duplex residence

DESCRIPTION® The two story building has a cross form and a
gambrel roof with projecting pedimented gabled dormers to the
north and south. 1t has shiplap siding with shingles in the
second story gable ends and vertical tongue and groove

. sheathing on the foundation. The windows are one over one
double-hung wood sash. The eaves are boxed. An attached porch
with a bellcast roof extends across most ot the front of the
building. It is supported with four truncated obelisk posts
and has a railing of vertical boards with a top and bottom
tap. The foundation has been altered by the addition of
aluminum sash slider windows. A small addition has also been
made to the north end of the front porch to provide cover ftor
the second entrance. It also appears that a railing above the
bay window on the south side may be missing. The house taces
east onto 3rd street. This house is classiteid as Primary
Signiticant because its building torm, detailing. and
architectural style are representative of structures built
during the primary pericd ot development in St Helens.
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125 ADDRESS: 175 5 2rd Sreet
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Gbeorge % Shirley Robinette, 175 § Jrd, St Helens UK 97031

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 2700
FPLAT: St. Helens LOT: 1Y BLOCK: 32
YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Crattsman
ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: HResidence

DESCRIPTION: The one story building is rectangqular in form and
has a hip root with a hip dormer window. 1t has one over one
double~hung wood sash windows. 1t has a two-bay front with a
reentrant porch at the southeast corner. 1t has been covered
over with tire retardant shingles but it appearcs the original
siding was shiplap. An aluminum canopy has alsc been added
over the front windows as well as corrugated fiberglass on
the tront porch and decorative aluminum shutters on 1ts side
facades. It appears that these changes are easily reversible.
The house faces east onto 3rd street.

126 ADDRESS: (1vl) § 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant
OWNER: Donald % Joyce Heller et al, Rt 1, Box 1/08
St Helens DR 97051
ASSESSOR MAP: 41322 FAX LOT: Z2gou
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 20, pt ot 21 BLOCK: 3%
USE: Vacant Lot

DESCRIPTION® The property which taces east onto 3rd street has
remnants ot a stone foundation and retaining wall. The site
is landscaped with mature garden plants including a large
cherry and willow tree,

127  ADDRESS: 197 § 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signhificant
OWNER: Charles % Kathleen Moser, 197 S 3rd, 5t Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 2900

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: Pt of 21;22 BLOCK: 32
YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The one and one half story building is rectangular
in form. It has a gable roof with the eave end oriented
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toward the street and a shed dormer. 1t has shiplap siding
with shingles on the dormer and vertical shiplap on the
foundation. The windows are one over one double hung wood
sash and are generally paired. A reentrant porch extends
across the front of the building and 1s supported with boxed
posts. The front door 1s Victorian 1n style with etched
glass. The gquttere have been renewed. otherwise no
alterations are visikle on the exterior ot the structure, The
house taces east onto 3rd street and the site 15 lower tnan
the street grade.

128 ADDREYSS: 260 St Helens Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non-Contributing )
OWNER: Lee Applegate, 2350 Belton Drive, 5t Helens UR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: =00u
PLAT: St. Helens Lor: 1, 2 BLOCE: &2
YEAR BUILT: 1940 STYLE: rodernistic

ALTERATIONS: Mincor—-Moderate USE: Commercial

DESCRIFTION® The former St Helens Sentinel-Mist Building 15 a
one story, rectangular shaped structure, constucted of hoilow
terra cotta tile with a stucco finish. It has an asymmetrical
three-bay front with a simply ornamented parapet across the
front facade which taces onto St Helens street. The original
windows have been filled in. The Sentinel-Mist was located 1n o
building (50) at 1st & St Helens betore moving to this
building in 13941.

129-A ADDRESS: 176 § 4th Street

CLASSIFICATIUN: Secondary Significant

OWNER: (lement & Carol Brandt, FU BHox Y51, St Helens OR Y7001
ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 3100

PLAT: St. Helens LOv: &, 4 BLOUCK: 32

YEAR BUILT: 1916 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Minor USkE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The one story building is rectangular in form and
has a symmetrical three-bay tront. It has a gatle roof with
the eave end oriented toward the street and beveled tongue
and groove siding. Below the drip cap and water table, the
foundation £8 has a stucco wash. The windows are one over one
double-hung wood sash. It has a small attached front porch
with a gable roof which is supported with two boxed Pposis.
The porch rail is constructed of vertical boards with 2 top
and bottom cap. The house faces west on 4th street.



FHR-$-300 (11-78)

United States Department of the Interior
Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service

National Register of Historic Places
Inventory—Nomination Form

Continuation sheet item number 7 84

129-B ADDRESS: 172 S 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Frimary Signiticant
OWNEK: Clement % Carol Brandt, FU Box 7491, St Helens UR Y705t

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 3100

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 3, 4 BLOCE: 22

YEAR BUILILT: ca 1890 STYLE: Vernacular tethrr—fsenhonee
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Residence

DESCR1FTIUN: The one story building 1s rectanguiar 1in plan
and has a symmetrical three-bay {front. Its gqable root 15
steeply pitched and oriented with the eave end toward the
street. [t has shiplap siding and below the drip cap the
toundation 1s sheathed with vertical tongue a&and aroove
siding. The windows are narrow, one over one double-hung wood
sash. The attached hip root porch which extends across the
front of the building is supported by five boxed posts. ine
porch rail is constructed of vertical boards with & top and
bottom cap. An addition has been made to the soutn side of
the building andg it appears that the porch railing may have
been altered and the porch extended to the south, otherwise,
the structure appears to be intact. 1he buzluinéﬁfﬁést onto
4th street but 1s sited at the back of the lot.

120 ADDRESS: 164 S 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Clair % Virginia Milne, 154 5 4th, 5t Helens OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LUOT: 3200
FLAT: St. Helens LOT: & BLOCK: 32
YEAR BUILT: 1920 STYLE: Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Minor-Moderate USt: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The building is a very small one story rectangular
structure with an asymmetrical two-bay tront. It has a gable
roof with the gable end oriented toward the street. There are
small brackets at the gable ends. It has raked shingle siding
and a concrete block foundation. The windows are one over one
double-hung wood sash. The front porch with an attached gable
roof extends across two thirds of the front ot the building.

It is supported by four square posts which rest atop a solid
rail. A shed addition extends across the rear of the
building. The siding and rear addition appear to be the only
changes that have occurred to the structure besides its
foundation, which indicates it may have been moved. The house
faces west onto 4th street. ‘
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121 ADDRESS: 154 S 4th Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant

OWNEK: Clair % Virginia Milne, 154 8 4th, St Hetens 0K Y7051
ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 3300

FLAT: St. Helens LOt: 6 BLUOCKE: 32

YEAR BUILT: 1903 S1YLE: LCrattsman
ALTERATIONS: Minor-Moderate Kesidence

DESCRIPTION: The one story building with

UskE:

attic is rectangular

in form and has a symmetrical three-bay tront. 1t has a hip
roof with a hipped rcot dormer. 1t has been resided with tire
retardant shingles, however,. the window and dcor trim 1s
intact. The windows are cne over cne double-hung wood sash.
The toundation ic poured concrete and relatively crude in 1ts
construction. A reentrant porch extends across the tront
facade and 1s supported by four boxed slightly obelisk posts
which rest on a solid rail. The only alterations appear to be
the siding and a2 wrought iron hand rail which has been added
to the porch stairs. The house taces west on 4tn street,

132 ADDRESS: 144 S 4th Street

CLASSIFICAT1ON: Secondary Signiticant

OWNER: G&race Sonneland, 15 Strand, St Helens OR 970351
ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 3400

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 7 BLOCK: 32

YEAR BUILT: 1926 STYLE: Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: HMinor US5E: Residence

DESGRIPTION® The one stary building 1s rectangular in torm and
has a symmetrical three-bay front., The gable root is oriented
with the gable end toward the street and brackets support the
gable ends. The roct is moditied at the rear ot the structure
into a hip. It has clapboard siding and the foundation is
sheathed with vertical boards and battens. The windows are
cne over one doukle-hung wood sash. An attached gable root
porch is off center and extends across approximately one
third of the tront tacade. It is supported by two truncated
obelick boxed posts which sit on a solid rail. The house
faces west on 3;? street.
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133 ADDRESS: 134 S 4th Street
CLASSIFICAT1ON: Secondary Signiticant
OWNEKR: Eldeon & Adeline Morris, 24 DuBois Lane, 5t Helens OR 97001

ASSESSOR MAF:  4132% TAX LOT: 3500
FLAT: St. Helens LOT: 8 BLOCK: 32
YEAR BUILT: 1924 STYLE: RBungalow

ALTERATIONS: Minor-Moderate UsE: HResidence

DESCRIFTION® The one story buillding 1s irregular in plan and
hae an asymmetrical three-bay front. 1t has a gable root with
the gable end oriented toward the street and brackets. 1t has
*Calitornia* clapboard siding and, below the drip cap and
water table, the toundation has a concrete wash. The windows
@are one over one double-hung wood sash. The small attached
porch has a gable rcotf and is supported by two boxed Fosts.
The porch and door are ott center. An addition has been added
to the rear ot the house which has been detailed in a
compatible manner except tor the roct shape which is a lower
hipped roof. The house faces west onto 4th street.

134 ADDRESS: (113) S 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

OWNER: Robert Brown, FO Box 31, St Helens OR Y7091
ASSESSOR MAF: 41323 TRX LOT: 2200
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 10 BLOCK: 33X
USE: Vacant Lot



FHA-8-300 (11-78)

United States Department of the Interior
Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service

National Register of Historic Places

Inventory—Nomination

Continuation sheet

ForhGS sy s
'?" ..ed =
"date anfemd

Form

tem number 7

115 ADDREYS: 224 5 4th Street

CLASSIF1ICATION: Secondary Signiticant

UWNEKR: Amber % Evadean Parr, 224 S 4th, 5t Helens UK 97031
ASSESSOR MAF: 41323 TAX LOT: 2100

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: v BLOCE: &3

YEAR RUILT: 1926 S1YLE: Bunaalow
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: Hesidence

DESCRIPTION: The one story building is rectangular in plan and

has an asymmetrical

concrete wash on the foundation
table. The windows are one over

three-bay tront.
oriented with 1ts gakle end toward the street
ends are supported by brackets, 1t has shingle siding with &

lts gakle roof 1s

and the gable
below the drip cap and water
one double-hung wood sash. An

attached gable roof porch extends across the southern hait ot

the tront tacade. It is supported

A hipped root shed has been attached to the northeast
corner of the building. The only other alteration

square posts.
rear
appears to

bty two solid

te the tlocr o1 the front porch. The house faces west onto

4th Street and has two large cak

136 RDDRESS:
CLASSIF1CATION:

UWNER: Effie Mutton, 234 S 4th,
ASSESSOR MAF: 41323

FLAT: St. Helens

YEAR BUILT: 1926

ALTERATIONS: Minor

trees in 1ts tront yard.

234 § 4th Street
Secondary Signiticant

St Helens UR Y7051
TAX LOYT: 2000

LOT: 8 BLOCK: 33
STYLE: Bungalow
USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The one story building is rectangular in plan and
has an asymmetrical four~-bay tront. The gable roct which is
sheathed with tile is oriented with its eave end toward the
street. There are brackets in the gable ends of the root. 1t

is sided with stucco and has a concrete foundation.
windows are eight over one double-hung wood sash.,

the tront facade which are large

The
except for

tixed windows. An attached

gable roof porch extends across the northern two thirds ot

the front of the building. It
masonry piers and has a solid

is supported with sgquare

rail- both of which are

stuccoed over. It appears that the tront fixed windows may

have been altered and that some
made to the front porch.
street.

other changes may have been

The house faces west onto 4th
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137 ADDRESS: 155 5 4th Street

CLASSIFICATIUN: Frimary Signitficant

OWNER: Daniel Wootan % Carlene King, FU Box 28Y, St Helens UR 9/051
ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 6300

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 6,17 BLULK: 43

YEAR BUILT: 1851 STYLE: breek Revival

ALTERATIONS: Moderate USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION:® The Henry Knighton House 15 a two story
rectangular structure with a symmetrical tive-bay front. (ts
gable roof 1 oriented with 11s eave end toward the strest
and has 3 one story shed addition across the back. The eaves
are boxed and there are esave returns on the gable ends. The
criginal clapboard siding has been covered over with aluminum
clapboards. The windows are six over six double-nung wood
cash and are slightly smaller at the second story than the
first. The house. which was moved 1n 13934, has a newer
toundation which has a stucco wash. The cne story attached
porch with pedimented gatle root is centered on the tront
tacade in the central bay. It is supported by two boxed posts
with molded caps. The tront door is flanked by sidelights and
a transom above., The tellewing additional changes have been
made to this structure: a concrete block stove chimney has
been added to the south end: as well as aluminum awnings:
wrought iron hand railings have been added to the porch:
which has a concrete floor and stairs; a carport addition has
been added to the southwest corner and a one story tlat
rooted addition to the north side.

In 1847, Henry Knighton acquired a Donation Land Glaim on the
lower Columbia where he established the town ot St Helens. In
1851, he built this structure from rough lumber trom the local
mill at Milton and finished lumker, which had been brought
around the Horn, from Bath, Maine. by Captain Francis LeMont.
The house was origqinally located on Znd street (¥3) on a line
with the Flaza (16) and the Gounty Courthcouse (1), and was
moved to the present loccation in the early 1330°s. The Mount
St Helens Chapter. Daughters of the American Revolution have
designated the house as a historic site. and a plaque
designating it as such has been placed on the house. 1t is
the oldest surviving structure in downtown St Helens.

The Gaptain LeMont House which was ot a similar age and
construction. and also built ot materials brought around the
Horn, was demolished in 1973 when the annex was added tc the
cld courthouse to make room tor 3 new parking lot (8).
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138 ADDRESS: 165 S5 4th Street

CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non-Contributing

OWNER: M.E. % Helen McMichael, 165 § 4th, 5t Helens UK 97001
ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOF: 6200

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: 5, 18 BLOCE: 43

YERR BUILT: 1967 STYLE: Suburban Ranch
ALTERATIONS: Minor ~USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The McMichael House is an irregularly shaped
structure with horizontal clapboard siding and a complex, low
pitched hipped roct. It faces east onto 4th street.

139 ADDRESS: 5. 4th Street

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant

OWNER: Edmondson’s Drapery, lnc., FO Box 16496, Fortland OR 97216
ASSESSOR MAF:  413%2% TAX LOT: 6100

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: 4, 19 BLOCK: 43

USE: Vacant Lot

DESCRIPTION The property 1s a rocky outcropping whxch descends
to 4th cstreet. 1t has been landscaped with aﬂuwk——spaﬁs and
ornamentalg. s

140 ADDRESS: 185 § 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
OWNER: Leonard & Emma Scheer, PO Box 37, St Helens UR 970951

ASSESS0R MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 5700
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 20 BLOUCK: 43
YEAR BUILT: ca 1925 STYLE: Colonial Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Minor-Moderate USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The one story building is ‘LY shaped and has a
symmetrical three-bay front. It has a jerkinhead root with
full eave returns across the rake ends. It has horizontal
clapboard siding all the way down tc the poured concrete
foundation. It has wood sash double-hung windows of various
muntin designs. A small attached porch with a swept barrel
roof extends across a third of the front facade. It is
supported by two truncated obelisk posts which rest on soid
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clapboard piers an:ﬂz railing. A garage which &appears original
is attached to the scuthwest corner ot the building. The
following alterations have been made to the building: a
fiterglass screen has been added to the porch; one aluminum
window hacs been added to the south elevations and 1t appears
that the front windows may have been altered. The house rtaces
east onto 4th street.

141 ADDRESS: 430 St Helens Street
CLASSIFICATION: Frimary Signiticant
OWNER: Chester % Pearl Kondrasky, B60 Tualatin., St Helens UR Y7051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TAX LOT: 5800

PLAT: St. Helens » LOT: 21, 22 BLUCE: 43

YEAR BUILT: ca 18%0 STYLE: &= Vernacul ar ESrmbooss
ALPERAT G001 MO DGRATE 2SE . RESIDEINCT &

DESGCRIPTION® The twe story building 1s rectangular in torm and
has an asymmetrical tour-bay front. The gable root is
criented with the eave end toward the street and a one story
lean to extends across the back ot the building. It has been
resided with raked shingles. however, the window and door
trim remain intact. The windows are cne over one double-hung
wood sash. A hip-roof attached porch extends along the
southern and eastern sides of the building. It 1= supported
by seven turned posts. The porch railing 1s constructed ot
vertical boards with a top and bottom cap. The porch railing
and stairs appear to have been replaced or added at a later
time. A one story gable addition has been added to the
western facade as well as the alterations made to the rear
facade on the eastern side. A carport has been added to the
northern end of the building. The house faces socuth oanto St
Helens street and is situated on a large corner lot. it is
surrounded by an old privet hedge and a tew older ornamental
trees.

142 ADDRESS: 480 S5t Helens Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Significant
DWNER: Emma Hamilton, 355 § Zrd, 5t Helens 0OR 97051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41322 TRX LOT: 6000

FLAT: St. Helens LOT: 1,2,3 BLOCK: 43
YEAR BUILT: ca 1910 STYLE: Craftsman
ALTERATIONS: Minor USE: HResidence

DESGCRIPTION® The one story building with attic is rectangular
in form and has an asymmetrical three-bay front. It has a
steeply pitched hip roof with ornamentally cut ratter tails
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and a slight bellcast flair. 1t has a dormer with similar
detailing on its front {(southern) tacade. 1t has chifplap
siding with wvertical tongue and groove sheathing on the
foundation below the dripcap and water table. The windows are
cne over one double-hung wood sash and are paired. The
reentrant porch extends across the trent ot the buildng and
is supported by fcur simple boxed posts. The porch railing is
constructed ot vertical two by twos withh a ftop and bottom
cap. The front door 15 recessed at the eastern end ot the
front porch. The following alterations have been made to the
structure® a reentrant dormer has been added to the east side
at the second story levels the toundation has been sheathed
with plywood: and the porch rail and stairs nave been
replaced. The house sits on a high plateau and faces socuth
cnto St Helens street. It 1s surrcunded by a lawn with old
fruit trees.

143 ADDRESS: 205 § 4th Street
CLASSIFICATIUN: Secondary Significant
OWNER: MWilliam % Shirley Berg, 205 5 4th, St Helens UOR 97051

ASSESSOR MAR: 41323 TAX LOT: 2400
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 12,13 BLOCE: 42
YEAR BUILT: 1910 STYLE: Craftsman

ALTERATIONS: Minor-Moderate USE: FKesidence

DESCRIPTION: The two story building is rectangular in form and
has a two-bay tront. Its root is bellcast with boxed eaves.
It is sided with horizontal shiplap. and the toundation is
sheathed with vertical shiplap below the drip cap and water
table. The windows are one over one double-hung sash. An
attached bellcast roofed porch extends across the front and
is supported by four slightly obelisk porch posts which rest
ocn a solid rail, The following alterations have been made to
the structure® the front door has been changed;: the front
porch has been partially enclosed with fiberglass: one window
cn the south and one on the east facades have been altered:
and two additions have teen made to the rear of the structure
which are compatible in design. According to local tradition
this house was designed and built by the same person who
build’the house located at 280 St Helens street (93). The
house faces east onto 4th street.
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144 ADDRESS: 25 S 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-Contributing
OWNER: William % Miriam Harrison, 225 S 4th, S5t Helens OR Y7051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41323 TRX LOT: 2500

PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 42 BLOCK: 42

YEAR BUILT: 1921 STYLE: Colonia/ Bungalow
ALTERATIONS: Extensive USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The one and one halt story building is *T* shaped
in form and has an asymmetrical three-bay front. It has a
jerkinhead roof which is sheathed with tiles. The eaves are
boxed and there are eave returns on the rake ends. It has
been resided with horizontal aluminum clapboards and the
windows have beén replaced with aluminum sash windows. It has
@ small reentrant porch. The building has been altered in the
following additional ways: a garage has been added to the
south side of the building and wrought ircn handrails to the
front porch. The house is sited high above the street and
faces east onto 4th street.

145 ADDRESS: 235 S 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary Signiticant
OWNER: Lawrence & Bethel Mersinger, 235 S 4th, St Helens UK Y7051

ASSESSOR MAF: 41323 . TAX LOT: 2600
PLAT: St. Helens LOT: 15, 16 BLOCK: 42
YEAR BUILT: 1926 STYLE: Colonial Bungalow

ALTERATIONS: Minor-Moderate USE: Residence

DESCRIPTION: The one and one halt story building is rectangular
in plan and has an asymmertrical four-bay front. 1t has a
jerkinhead roof with the eave end oriented toward the street.
The root is sheathed with tiles and the rake ends are
detailed with brackets. It has been resided with fire
retardant shingles, however, the trim remains intact. The
windows are wood sash and are either one over one double-hung
or fixed. It has a poured concrete foundation. The attached
porch has a jerkinhead roof and extends across about one
third of the front facade. It is supported with two bowed
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truncated cbelisk posts. The porch rail is constructed of
vertical boards with a top and bottom cap. The tollowing
additional changes have been made to the structure: a wrought
iron handrail has been added as well as planter boxes along
the porch rails and a small addition has been made to the
north side. The house cits high above 4th street on which it
faces in an easterly direction. 1t is at the foot of a rock
clitf.

It was constructed by Oscar Johnson and Art Hallberg tor
Louis Muhr. It appears that the houses at ZZ5 and Z34 S 4th
(144 & 126) may have been designed and built by the same
people.



8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Che% and justify below

___ prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture X _ religion

__1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic —_.. conservation —— law . science

— 1500-1599 agriculture _._.economics —— literature _— sculpture

— 1600-1699 I architecture ____ education - military ___ social/

——_1700-1799 art __ _ engineering —___ music humanitarian

"X 1800-1899 X commerce __X_ exploration/settlement ____ philosophy —__theater

_X_ 1900~ ... communications = ___ _ industry X politics/government  ____ transportation
_____ _ invention ___ other (specity)

Specific dates 1847-1934 Builder/Architect Cronkite, Doughty and others

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

St. Helens, an historic shipping community on the lower Columbia River in Oregon, is signif-
icant under National Register criteria "A" and "C" as an example of speculative town devel-
opment which conveys its early "sense of place." The town's promoter, Henry Knighton,
founded St. Helens in 1849 - 1850 and believed for a time that it would compete with Portland
now the state's metropolis and major port,which is situated 30 miles upriver. The current
population of St. Helens is 7,200. Though Knighton's initial dream was unrealized, his
grandiose scheme is reflected in St. Helens' plat, laid out somewhat in imitation of Phila-
delphia, and in his house, the Tumber for which was shipped to the site around Cape Horn.
While not a successful competitor of Portland's, the community gdained an early lead

among the surrounding towns in Columbia County which was solidified in 1854 when St.Helens wa
made the County seat. Reflected in the historic downtown district also is the fact that

St. Helens experienced very gradual growth during the last half of the 19th century and
suffered a severe setback when a fire in September, 1904 destroyed the greater part of the
business area and the major lumber mill in the town. In 1908, however, lumbermen Hamlin

and Charles McCormick saw the potential of the town's strategic river location and proceeded
to build the "big mi11" and a number of other timber-related factories. As a result, the
population of St. Helens exploded, the commercial core revived, and the surrounding residen-
tial area rapidly developed. Unfortunately, this boom era was cut short by the Great Depres-
sion. Having been by-passed by major railroad and highway routes, the St. Helens Downtown
Historic District retains important elements of its early beginnings, and its boom era
development is almost entirely intact, thus creating a character which is a blend of County
seat and "payroll city." On March 21, 1984, the St. Helens City Council duly adopted
Resolution No. 928 authorizing the City to nominate its historic district to the National
Register of Historic Places, a move which is considered the essential first step in present-
day efforts to revitalize the downtown.

On July 5, 1843, the Oregon Provisional Government divided the Oregon country into four dis-
tricts and instituted land laws, the essentials of which were retained in the later Donation
Land Act of 1850. Tuality, the northwest district, extended from the Willamette River, north
of the Yamhill River, west to the Pacific Ocean, and as far north as Puget Sound. Upon the
prospect of a definite political status for the region, settlement of the area began on a
large scale. By 1850, "the number of ambitious and striving, or rather struggling, towns
had greatly increased. Many of them had no more than a nominal pretention, for ambitious
towns were laid out that never had more than a paper existence... No onebelieved that so

many cities as had then been platted were needed for a population of a few thousand, but

each group of town builders had faith and courage, and even confidence that its particular
venture would outstrip the rest.”l In 1844 Bartholomew White settled the first land claim

in the St. Helens area, building a grist and sawmill on his property, which was situated on
the west bank of the Columbia River near the mouth of the Multnomah Channel of the Willamette
In 1847, Henry M. Knighton, with visions of a deep water port, filed a preemption land claim
on White's DLC. "In 1849-50... Knighton employed W. H. Tappan, an Army-employed 'special
artist'...and P. W. Crawford to plat 'St. Helens,' named for the mountain which forms such a
conspicuous backdrop to the town... The plan Knighton, Tappan and Crawford gave St. Helens
was of truly metropolitan pretentions... similar to Philadelphia... The Philadelphia layout

was freely copied during the 18th and early 19th centuries; St. Helens and Oakland, Californic
Were among the Tast and most western imitators."2



9. Major Bibliographical References

Please see continuation sheet

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property _ C: 7.5 acres
Quadrangle name St. Helens, QOregon-Washington Quadrangle scale _1:62500
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Verbal boundary description and justification The St Helens Downtown Historic District is located

in Sec. 3, T.4N., R.1W. of the Willamette Meridian and in Sec. 34, T.5N., R.IW., W.M., in

Columbia County, Oregon. The d1str1ct 1nc]udes the core of the gr1d1ron plat of 1850, but

its built resources

List all states and counties for properties overlappmg state or county boundaries
state N/A code county N/A code
state N/ A code county N/A code

11. Form Prepared By

namestitle Judith Rees and Kimberly Demuth, Historic Preservation Consultants

organization FOr The City of St. Helens date March 18, 1984
street & number 265 Strand Street telephone  503/397-6272
city or town St. Helens state Oregon 97051
12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification
The evaluated significance of this property within the state is: / "
— national —__ state _X local -

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the Natjo aI istoric Pregervation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the Natio D Register and gertify that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Natiphal Plafk $e ' :

State Historic Preservation Officer signature

September 25, 1984

i\v\urv A7
Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer \ date

title

For NPS use only
| hereby certify that this property is included in the National Register

| R lor ) qeer ) Erterea i 4y qwe /s
/

Beper of the National Redfister TUTVHAL Regigtgp

Attest: date

Chief of Registration

U.S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE : 1983 O - 419-311
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In an endeavor to make St. Helens the metropolis of Oregon, Knighton promoted the city
as the head of navigation on the Columbia River. Businesses began to spring up and in
1851 a number of fine residences were. built in the town with lumber brought around the
Horn by Captain Frances LeMont from his home-town in Bath, Maine. In 1852, Knighton
succeeded in convincing the Pacific Mail Steamship Company to build a '"'fine' wharf and
warehouse at the foot of St. Helens Street (cost approximately $40,000).

""I't was at this time that Oliver Meeker wrote to his brother, Ezra, afterward marker of
the Oregon Trail, who had just arrived in Portland, to come down to St. Helens as he was
running a hotel with sixty boarders and there was lots of work for everybody.”3 Dr.
Thomas Condon, a young Congregational minister, also came to St. Helens in 1852 sent by
the American Missionary Society. He stayed for two years preaching and teaching school.
Condon, later Oregon's foremost paleontologist and geologist, became Head of the Geology
Department at the University of Oregon in 1876, and Condon Hall is named for him.

In the following year, Knighton built an additional wharf in the same vicinity and a
church on Nob Hill where it could be seen up and down the river. With all this activity
in St. Helens, Knighton anticipated that Portland, St. Helens' up-river rival, would
fade back into nothingness and dwindle to a small village.

However, ''the citizens of Portland would not stay licked. In those days, the civic
leaders of Portland believed in community teamwork. They pursuaded W.P. Williams,
Henry Meigs, and Captain J.S. Nash, owners of the brig ''Peytonia', to place their boat
on the San Francisco-Portland run. The '"Peytonia' arrived in Portland on Christmas

day 1853 and the following day the citizenhs of Portland gave a banquet to Captain Nash
and his officers, at which Josiah Failing speaking in behalf of his fellow townsmen,
extended the thanks of the community to the owners and officers of the ''Peytonia'. St.
Helens met this move by building a bigger and better dock and by planning the building
of a railroad from St. Helens to Lafayette, at that time the metropolis of the Oregon
country. Portland countered by cutting the stumps out of the Canyon Road and putting
corduroy in the mudholes from the head of Jefferson Street westward toward Tualatin, so
that the farmers would trade in Portland."" This road provided the only link between
the Willamette-Columbia water_ route and Oregon's major wheat belt in the Tualatin Plains.

A final blow to Knighton's dreams for St. Helens was a fire which destroyed his wharf as
well as the Pacific Mail's. By this time, the channel at Swan Island had been dredged
so that the earlier problem of ships running aground on its bar was eliminated. So
when political pressure was brought to bear, the Pacific Mail relocated to Portland.
This produced a setback for the local economy with the town's promoters losing heavily
and many taking leave of St. Helens.

In January, 1854, when Columbia County was formed by an act of the Territorial Legislature,
St. Helens became the County seat. This helped to solidify its position in relationship
to other nearby towns. During the 1860's and 70's, St. Helens continued to be a shipping
and lumber producing center, but ''one settler who came here in 1874 said there were only
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a handful of people.”5 During these years, St. Helens was a rough and ready place if the
National Election of 1862 is any indication. An Oregonian correspondent reported that

"It was the warmest election ever held in Oregon if Columbia County was a fair expression,
_and... St. Helens had a jolly time on the day of the election. About 40 fights, no

less, are said to have occurred; 67 shirts badly torn, 36 bloody noses, 24 black eyes,

18 backs dusted, 140 buttons lost, 12 pairs of suspenders bursted, 8 kegs of lager and

19 gallons of whiskey consumed, the ground considerably torn up, besides innumerable
scratches, kicks, bites, etc. etc., are said to have been the result of the day's dis-
turbance."® The situation was no doubt aggravated by the voting practice of acclamation
still then in vogue. - '

During the 1870's, the local sawmill which was always in litigation was bought at a
Sheriff's sale by Charles and James Muckle, who had been logging near St. Helens. Over

a number of years the Muckles built up the mill and developed other holdings in St.
Helens. The June, 1883 edition of the West Shore has an extensive illustrated article

on their mill, general merchandise store and their boat, the '"Latona'. In 1884, the
growth of surrounding towns, especially Houlton, St.‘*Helens' sister city, was spurred
when the Northern Pacific completed construction of the railroad from Portland to Hunters.
Although St. Helens was bypassed because of the inaccessability of its rocky terrain, it
also prospered from the settlement and the increased trade with Warren, Scappoose, and
Houlton.

Its rocky terrain, however, was not always a detriment to its growth. The 1909 special
edition of the Oregon Mist noted that '"like St. Johns, St. Helens layed dormant for many
years and deservedly had the reputation of being one of the slowest towns in Oregon.

The beauty of its location was admitted, but it requires payrolls to make a town and
these were altogether lacking... but a change has come over the scene, the principal
factor in which is the development of the rock industry. The St. Helens rocks, after
being sneered at for many years for their unproductive qualities, have at last demon-
strated the faith of 0ld Captain LeMont who always insisted that a time would come when
'somebody will want those rocks'... As Portland and other towns and cities of the north-
west grow, the demand for this product must naturally increase for there is no other rock
so good for paving streets for heavy traffic or for construction of churches and public
buildings." The City of Portland did order St. Helens' Belgian blocks by the thousands
to pave their heaviest traveled streets. However, the industry was short-lived. By
1916, bithulithic and concrete had replaced the blocks as a paving material.

On September 14, 1904, the city received a devastating setback to its development when
the greater part of the business section of the city was destroyed by fire. The fire
destroyed the business block bounded by First, Cowlitz, and Strand and continued on to
the Muckle property to the south, destroying the mill but not their general merchandise
store. Most of the property owners had no, or inadequate, insurance and, therefore,
their losses were especially devastating. As a result of the fire, the complexion of the
town was altered substantially. In the place of the old wooden buildings, buildings of
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stone, brick and concrete rose up. Buildings that had not been destroyed in the fire were
demolished to make room for the new generation of commercial structures. This trend

which was initiated by construction of the courthouse in 1906 was further stimulated in
1909 by the opening of the St. Helens Lumber Company.

In 1908, Hamlin McCormick and his brother, Charles, bought the Muckle Mill property and
immediately began construction on their new mill. "With the sudden influx of people to
build the mill, St. Helens' boarding and rooming houses and merchants did a thriving
business. Thus began the "Big Mill" and the prospering of St. Helens. New homes began
to spring up and new business places were soon in evidence. The St. Helens Hotel, City
Hall, Muckle, 1.0.0.F., and Morgus Buildings and many others were built... and St. Helens
was on its way to becoming a city.”7

In 1889, when the city was incorporated, the population had been 325 and over the next
twenty years it had risen to 400 (1909), but then in a matter of seven years, it rose to
over 2,400 (1916). This trend was continued and stabilized in the 1920's by Hamlin
McCormick's creation of a number of other timber related industries: The St. Helens
Ship Building Company in 1912, St. Helens Creosoting Plant in 1913, Columbia County
Lumber Company in 1914, St. Helens Wood Products Company in 1923, St. Helens Pulp &
Paper in 1926, and Fir-Tex Insulating Board Company in 1930. Three of these businesses
still provided a strong economic base for St. Helens going into the 1980's, Boise Cas-
cade Sawmill and Veneer (formerly the St. Helens Lumber Co.), Boise Cascade Pulp and
Paper (formerly the St. Helens Pulp & Paper Co.), and Owens Corning (formerly the
Fir-Tex Insulating Board Co.).

The buildings in the Downtown Historic District are a dramatic reflection of the devel-
opment of the city and the people who were influential in this process. Only a few
scattered buildings of wood construction, mostly residential, remain to represent St.
Helens before the fire of 1904. After the fire, almost all of the commercial buildings
were constructed of stone, concrete or brick. Residential structures, however, continued
to be built of wood but are distinguishable from the earlier residences because of their
style of architecture, Bungalow and Craftsmen, the then latest in architectural fashion.
Generally, the homes along the high rock cliffs which overlook the Columbia River on
either side of the commercial district tend to be the residences of St. Helens' promin-
ent citizens, physicians, attorneys, businessmen and government officials. The other
residences in the district tend to be more modest examples of the Bungalow and Craftsmen
styles and the homes of less prominent citizens. It appears that some of these may have
been built by the McCormick's for mill employees.

It appears that most of the commercial and residential buildings were designed and con-
structed by local designers and contractors. A designer of particular note locally is
Jesse Doughty who came to St. Helens in 1925. 'His sister-in-law, Gabrielle Delepine,
a surgical nurse in Dr. L.G. Ross' hospital here, wrote him in 1925 that St. Helens,
with a series of mills opening, was on the threshold of magor growth and there were
indications they would need the services of an architect.'""® Self-taught, he was only
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qualified as a 'designer', but commercial buildings were his forte. He designed the
following buildings in the Downtown Historic District: Gray Building (13), Pythian
Building (61), Title Co. Building (10), BennettBuilding (18), Columbia Theater (14),
McCormick Apartments (70), Adams Grocery (60A), Public Restrooms (2A), and Sentinel-
Mist Building (128). An editorial at the time of his death in 1949 stated, 'Mr.
Doughty, in his capacity as the only practicing architect in this vicinity, was more
closely identified with the growth of St. Helens in the past 25 years than, perhaps, any
other man. Many of the buildings and civic improvements made in that period were the
product of his labor''.

The major contractor during St. Helens' secondary period of development is J.H. ""Hollije"
Cronkite. He came to St. Helens in 1907 and worked for Eldridge Crouse until 1911 when

he went into business for himself. Cronkite constructed many residential as well as

- commercial buildings, often collaborating with Doughty after his arrival in 1925. Among
the buildings in the District constructed by Cronkite are the Hewitt Building (23), Gray
Building (13), Title Co. Building (10), Columbia Theater (l4), Shinn House (6), Cronkite
House (85) and Dillard House (37). He was especially proud of his work on the McCormick's
St. Helens Shipyards where he constructed the sheds, mills and docks. He also constructed
many of the sawmills in the area.

St. Helens' secondary period of development came to a close with the Depression years of
the early 1930's. Because major transportation systems passed it by, the railroad in
1884 and the highway in the 1920's, it has been isolated from the effects of modern
urbanization. Very few buildings have been constructed in the Downtown Historic District
since the Depression .(only nine in the past 40 years) so that the District architectur-
ally retains the 1920's character of its boom era. St. Helens' Downtown Historic
District, then, is an enduring and excellent example of the early settlement patterns

of the northwest overlayed with the development of local indigenous industries before

the financial collapse of the great Depression. Its character today is a blend of its
County seat and payroll city origins.

FOOTNOTES:

]General History of Oregon Prior to 1861, Charles Carey, Metropolitan Press, Portland,
Oregon, 1936, Volume |1, Pp. 648-9.

2”Cities and Towns'', Steven Dotterrer in Space, Style & Structure, ed. Thomas Vaughan
and Virginia Ferriday, Oregon Historical Society, Portland, Oregon, 1974, Volume I,
P. 64,

3”City of St. Helens Founded in 1854, Susie Dillard, St. Helens Sentinel-Mist,

Columbia County Progress Report - 1939 to 1949, P. 19.

hHistory of Columbia River Valley From the Dalles to the Sea, Fred Lockley, S.J. Clarke
Publishing Co., Chicago, I1linois, 1928, Volume I, Pp. 312-14.
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5“Gradual Growth Built St. Helens'', St. Helens Sentinel-Mist, Diamond Anniversary
Edition, 1889-1964, December 31, 1964.

6The Centennial History of Oregon, 1811-1911, Joseph Gaston, S.J. Clarke Publishing
Co., Chicago, I1linois, 1912, Volume |}, P. 654,

7St. Helens Sentinel-Mist, Diamond Anniversary Edition, 1889-1964, December 31, 1964,
P. 6.

8Letter from Frances Doughty Ellery to Howard Cutler, January 26, 1984.
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Other Sources:
Isbister Family Scrapbook and miscellaneous newspaper clippings,
Letter from Frances Doughty Ellery to Howard Cutler, January 26, 1984,

Oral histories from Jay Austin, Katherine Ballatore, Joe Bennett, Berenice Brownlow,
Kendall and Beryl Burkhead, Viola Copeland, Frances Ellery, Nick Federici, K. Bruce
Hall, Jim Hunt, Elmer Jensen, Mildred Lain, Olaf Matson, George Perkins, Richard
Allen Phair, Marie Poff, Marion Morton Sten, Pansy Steward, Grace Sonneland,

Mae White, Lois Williams, Ruth Wood.

Photographs loaned by Columbia County Museum, Lois Fish, Marie Poff, Grace Sonneland,
George VanNatta, Mae White, Lois Williams. '

Sanborn Map, 1921 updated to 1939.

The Volunteers who conducted the oral histories aré Barbara Chabala, Anita Clawson,

Vernell Henderson, Sharon Israel, Margaret Ott, Leslie Ramsdell, and Barbara
and Noel Thompson.
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most of the city's early industrial and commercial development. Within the district,
the Columbia County Courthouse of 1906 and the linear "square" which it faces are the
hub of commercial and residential development which is cohesive in terms of scale and
general architectural character. The scope and extent of the district are distinctly
defined by topographical features: the Columbia River on the east, a gulch known as
Jackass Canyon on the north, a bluff named Nob Hil1l on the south; and also by a more
or less pronounced shift in architectural period and character on the western edge.

The nominated area, encompassing approximately 47.5 acres, is more particularly des-
cribed on the following continuation sheet.
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Beginning at the southwest corner of Lot 1, Block 12, of the Plat of St. Helens, Book O,
Page 166 and 167 as recorded in Columbia County Deeds and Records, Columbia County,
Oregon, thence north to the southwest corner of Lot 3, Block 12, thence east to the
southeast corner of Lot 3, Block 12, thence north to the northeast corner of Lot 3,
Block 12, thence west to the northwest corner of Lot 3, Block 12, thence north to the
southwest corner of Lot 8, Block 12, thence east to the southeast corner of Lot 8,
Block 12, thence north along the west side of River Street to 45 feet north of the
northeast corner of Lot 2, Block 13, thence west 55 feet on a line parallel with the
north side of Lot 2, Block 13, thence south 113 feet on a line parallel with the east
side of 1st Street, thence west 45 feet on a line parallel with the south side of Lot
2, Block 13, thence south 48 feet along the east side of lst Street to the southwest
corner of Lot 1, Block 13, thence west along the north side of Willamette Street to

the southeast corner of Lot 22, Block 16, thence north along the west side of Ist
Street to the northeast corner of Lot 18, Block 16, thence west to the northwest

corner of Lot 18, Block 16, thence north to the northeast corner of Lot 7, Block 16,
thence west to the northeast corner of Lot 16, Block 28, thence south along the west
side of 2nd Street to the northeast corner of Lot 17, Block 28, thence west to the north-
west corner of Lot 17, Block 28, thence south to the southwest corner of Lot 21, Block
28, thence east to the southeast corner of Lot 21, Block 28, thence south along the west
side of 2nd Street to the northeast corner of Lot 17, Block 27, thence west to the north-
west corner of Lot 17, Block 27, thence south 15 feet along the west side of Lot 17,
Block 27, thence west 30 feet on a line parallel with the north side of Lot 7, Block
27, thence north 131 feet on a line parallel with the east side of 3rd Street to the
south side of Lot 9, Block 27, thence east 30 feet to the southeast corner of Lot 9,
Block 27, thence north to a point 54 feet north of the southeast corner of Lot 10,
Block 27, thence west on a line parallel to the north side of Lot 10, Block 27 to the
west edge of 3rd Street, thence south along the west side of 3rd Street to a point 4
feet south of the northeast corner of Lot 14, Block 32, thence west on a line parallel
with the north side of Lot 14, Block 32 to the west edge of Lot 14, Block 32, thence
south to the southwest corner of Lot 14, Block 32, thence west to the northeast corner
of Lot 15, Block 43, thence south along the west side of Lth Street to the northeast
corner of Lot 17, Block 43, thence west to the northwest corner of Lot 6, Block 43,
thence south along the east side of 5th Street to the southwest corner of Lot 11, Block
L2, thence along the south side of 0ld Portland Road to the northwest corner of Lot 12,
Block 42, thence south to the southwest corner of Lot 16, Block 42, thence east to the
southwest corner of Lot 7, Block 33, thence north along the east side of 4th Street to
the southwest corner of Lot 8, Block 33, thence east to the southeast corner of Lot 8,
Block 33, thence north to the northeast corner of Lot 10, Block 33, thence west to the
northwest corner of Lot 10, Block 33, thence north along the east side of Lth Street

to the south side of St. Helens Street, thence east along the south side of St. Helens
Street to the northwest corner of Lot 11, Block 26, thence south along the east side

of 3rd Street to the southwest corner of Lot 5, Block 26, thence east 70 feet along the
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south side of Lot 5, Block 26, thence south 101 feet on a line parallel with 3rd Street,
thence west to a point on the east side of 3rd Street 36 feet north of the southwest
corner of Lot 2, Block 26, thence south along the east side of 3rd Street to the south-
west corner of Lot 1, Block 26, thence west across 3rd Street to the southeast corner

of Lot 22, Block 33, thence south along the west side of 3rd Street to the southeast
corner of Lot 18, Block 34, thence east to the southwest corner of Lot 5, Block 19,
thence north along the east side of 2nd Street to the southwest corner of Lot 8, Block
19, thence west to the southeast corner of Lot 8, Block 10, thence north to the southwest
corner of Lot 14, Block 10, thence east to the east side of Strand Street, thence

north along the east side of Strand Street to a point on the easterly prolongation of

the line between Lots 21 and 22, Block 11, thence north 730 02' 37" east to the tide
lands fronting and abutting all of lots 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20 and 21,

Block 11, thence northerly down said tide lands of the Columbia River to a point on

the easterly prolongation of the north side of St. Helens Street, thence south 73° 02' 37"
west to the point of beginning in St. Helens, Columbia County, Oregon.
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